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YEAR AT A GLANCE 2017-2018 

MAY2017 
ComECH Press conference 
QAHN AGM 
QESBA/ AA ESQ Spring Conference 
QPARSE AGM 
Literacy Committee meeting 
QFHSA presentation of Parent Action 
on Bill 101 for QUESCREN 

JUNE 2017 
i QFHSA Board of Directors meeting 
' History Archives meeting 

QCGN AGM 
Literacy Committee meeting 
ComECH meeting 

, WIBCA meeting 
: QAHN DREAM workshops 

i 
AUGUST 2017

i Western Quebec Regional Council 

l_ 
Revitali

_
sati

���
ille St�-�-��:�-��:���---- ___ 

SEPTEMBER 2017 
QPARSE luncheon 
CPF Advisory Board meeting 
ComECH meeting 
QFHSA Board of Directors orientation 
QP AT meeting 
Finance Committee meeting 
Executive Workshops 

---------·-·---------- -

OCTOBER 2017 
Fall Conference planning meeting 
CPF workshop at Beaconsfield High 
Victor & Sheila Goldbloom Awards 
Fall Conference at PETES 
QFHSA Board of Directors meeting 

NOVEMBER 2017 
Canadian Home & School AGM 
Presentation to ABEE 
QPAT Conference 
QFHSA Board of Directors meeting 

DECEMBER 2017 
NEXTschool Design meeting _] 

·---------· ·- - ----

JANUARY 2018 
NEXTschool Advisory Group meeting 
NEXTschool lnnopods Session I 
QAHN Montreal Committee meeting 
Literacy Committee meeting 
Lindsay Place Regional Council 

FEBRUARY 2018 
NEXTschool Design Group meeting 
NEXTschool lnnopods Session 11 
QFHSA Board of Directors meeting 
Rights & Resolutions Committee meeting 
Education Committee meeting 

/- ---·-· MARCH--2018 

I NEXTschool Design Group meeting 
NEXTschool lnnopods Session Ill 
QFHSA Board of Directors meeting 
Executive Appreciation Supper Montreal 

APRIL 2018 
Executive Appreciation supper 
Western Quebec 
NEXTschool Advisory Group meeting 
QFHSA Board of Directors meeting 
NEXTschool lnnopods Session IV 
QFHSA Annual General Meeting 



AAESQ 

ABEE/ 
CELA 

CHSF 

CLC 

ComECH 

EPCA 

FCPQ 

GLOSSARY OF ORGANIZATIONS 2018 

Association of Administrators of English Schools of Quebec www.aaesq.ca 
Provincial organization representing administrators ll'orking for English-speaking 
school boards across Quebec. 
President: Steven Colpitts 
Executive Director: Jan Langelier 

Advisory Board on English Education/ Commission de )'education en 
langue anglaise www.education.gouv.gc.ca 'en/organismcs-relcvant-du-ministre/abcc 
The mandate of the Advis01y Board 011 English Education (ABEE) is to advise the 
Minister of Education, Higher Education and Research 011 all matters C{{fecting 
the educational services offered i11 English eleme11ta1y and secondary schools and 
adult and vocatio11al education centres. 
Chair: Dr. Catluine Le Maistre 
Contact: Lynn Travers (Secretary) 

Canadian Home & School Federation www.canad�·rnhomcandschoolfcdcrnlion.ca 
The Natio11al Federation composed of provincial Home and School Federations 
President: Diane Power 
QFHSA rep: Rosemary Murphy 

Community Leaming Centres www.lcamgucbcc.ca'clcO I 
/11 the 1wo1·i11ce of Q11ehec. E11glish-s;,eaki11g c:01111111111ities do 1101 alirn_vs lw,·e 
ec111itable <tccess to ed11catio11 vr ht!altl, and social ser,·ias. Co111m1111it_r learning 
Centres (CLC Schools) lim·e a dual mfe in Quebec: s11ppo,-1i11g .,111de111 success 
and co11trib11ti11g to the l'itality o(E11glish-speaki11g co1111111111iti<.>s. 

Committee for the Enhancement of the Curriculum of History in Quebec 

English Parents' Committee Association www.cp<.:all ttChL'c .or<• 
EPCA. the E11glish Parent.� Committee Association, is a provi11cial organization 
represe11ti11g the Parellts' Committees and Central Parents· Committees of 
Quebec s English school boards. 
President: Rhonda Boucher 

Federation des comites de parents du Quebec www.fcpg.qc.ca 
(Federation of Parent Committees for the province of Quebec). 
FCPQ gathers members from parents' committees.from 62 Quebec's school 
boards (One parent from each parent committee) 
President: Corinne Payne 
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LEARN 

MEES/ 
MERS 

PACTE 

PCII 

QAHN 

QCGN 

GLOSSARY OF ORGANIZATIONS 2018 

Leading English Education and Resource Network WW\v.leamqucbcc.ca 
LEA R.V is a non-projit educm ion al orgcmi=at io11 t /iat o.fle1:-;, at 110 c/iarge. a 
,re,tlth �lit!fornwtio11 and tc'sown's.fvr l'1C' E11glish-.�pC'a/.:i11g co1111111111i1_1· in 
Quehec. 
President: Sylvain Racette 

Ministere de l'Education et de l'Enseignement superieur 
Minister of Education, Recreation and Sports www.education.gouv.CJc.ca 
The Mi11ist1y of Education of Quebec is the centralized body in Quebec which is 
responsible.for developing and proposing ed11cational policies througho11t the 
province. 
Minister: Sebastien Proulx 
Assistant Deputy Minister, Services to the English-speaking community: Chantal 
Beaulieu 

Provincial Advisory Council of Teachers of English 
Q FHSA rep: Marlyn Browruigg 

Patrimoine Canadian Heritage www.canada.pch.gc.ca 
Govemment body responsible.for national policies and programs that promote 
Canadian co11tent, foster c11lt11ral participation, active citizenship and 
participation in Canada :s civic l{(e, and strengthen connectio11s among 
Canadians. 
Minister: Melanie Joly 

Quebec Anglophone Heritage Network www.gahn.org 

Tlte Quebec Anglophone Heritage Net1rvrk (QA H.VJ is a 1w11-µro/i1. 11011-pani.w111 

p1Vl'i11ce-wide 01gc111i=atio11 engaged wit/, its 111e111hen in tire presen·atio11 C!/ tire 
built. c11/t11ml and 11a111ral heritage of Quebec. 
President: Simon Jacobs 
Executive Director: Matthew Farfan 

Quebec Community Groups Nehvork www.CJcgn.ca 

A provincial coalition of English ·speaking 01ga11i=atio11s who co11tribllfe to the 
development and e11/ra11ce111e11t of the vitality of tire E11glislr ·la11guage minority 
communities of Quebec. 
President: James Shea 

Director General: Sylvia Martin-Laforge 
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QFHSA 

GLOSSARY OF ORGANIZATIONS 2018 

Quebec Federation of Home & School Associations www.gfhsa.org 
A11 i11depe11de11t 11011profit 01ga11izatio11 made up of local associations of parents 
and vo/1111teers active in the sclrools (one of the provincial organizations 

comprising the CHSF). 
President: Brian Rock 
Executive Director: Carol Meindl 

QPARSE Quebec Provincial Association of Retired Teachers w\\ \\·.qpar�c-appcrq.or£ 
Rerired reacl1<'rs. ad111i11i,·trnton. 1m?fc·ssio11a/,· and .,1111port 11ffso111wl 11-/10 

hc11·e hee11 <'11111/u_\'C'l'S o{t111 t:11gl1\lt school hocml or 1wi1·atC' school in Q11c:hcc
Prc�ilknt: .Ian Langd1er 

QPAT Quebec Provincial Association of Teachers www.cmat·apcq.qc.ca 
Association provinciale des enseignantes et enseignants du Quebec {APEQ) 
The provincial 1111io11 for English ·speaking teachers in Quebec. 
President: Sebastien Joly 

QUESCREN Quebec English-Speaking Communities Research Network www.qucscren.ca 
QUESCREN is a collaborative 11etH"ork of researchers, stakeholders, educational 
a11d other i11stitutio11s that improves w1dersta11di11g of QuebeC:,; E11glish-speaki11g 
con1111w1ities and promotes their vitality. 
Co-Directors: Professor Brian Lewis and Professor Chedly Belkhodka 

QESBA Quebec English School Boards Association www.gesba.gc.ca 
Composed of 111e111bersfro111 nine English school boards i11 Quebec. 

CQSB 

EMSB 

ESSB 

President: Jennifer Maccarone 

Central Quebec School Board 
Chanman: Stephen Bmke 
Director General: Stephen Pigeon 

English Montreal School Board 
Chaitman: Angela Mancini 
Director General: Ann Marie Matheson 

Eastern Shores School Board 
Chainnan: Wade Gifford 
Director General: Howard Miller 
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GLOSSARY OF ORGANIZATIONS 2018 

ETSB Eastern Townships School Board www.ctsb.qc.ca 
Chainnan: Michael Murray 
Director General: Kandy Mackey 

LBPSB Lester B. Pearson School Board www.lbpsb.gc.ca 
Chan.man: Noel Bw·ke 
Director General: Michael Chechile 

LITTORAL Littoral School Board \\w,v.csdulittoral.qc.ca 
Director General : Nadia Landry 
Secretary General: Marc-Andre Masse 

NFSB New Frontiers School Board \\WW. ntsb.gc.ca 
Chaimian: David D'Aoust 
Director General: Robe11 Buttars 

RSB Riverside School Board www.rsb.qc.ca 
Chainnan: Dan Lamow·eux 
Director General: Sylvain Racette 

SWLSB Sir Wilfrid Laurie r School Board www.swlatu·iersb.gc.ca 
Chainnan: Jennifer Maccarone 
Director General: Paul Lamow·eux 

WQSB Western Quebec School Board www. westemg uc bee. ca 
Chan.man: James Shea 
Director General: Mike Dubeau 
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QFHSA 2018 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING- April 28, 2018 

BUSINESS MEETING PROCEDURE 

l. TI1e Annual General Meeting [AGM] is conducted in accordance with mrr Constitution, By-Laws
and Standing Rules. In the case of any proce�ural dispute reference shall be made to Robert·s Rt�es of
Order Revised.

2. Each official voting delegate of each Member Association shall have one vote on any question which
comes before the meeting, except for associations more than 250 kilometers from Montreal. Such
Associations will still be entitled to three votes, expressed either as an identical or divided vote.
Application for such privilege is to be presented in Wliting to the Executive Secretary p1ior to the stai1 of
the business po11ion of the Annual General Meeting.

3. TI1e quorum for transaction of business at the Annual General Meeting shall be twenty-five percent
[25%] of Member Associations in good standing, represented by their official representatives or
accredited alternates.

4. Voting shall be by ballot or show of hands. All questions shall be decided by a majority of those

present and entitled to vote, except those which require a two-thirds [2/3] m1jotity. On ballot votes,
the votes of each association shall be handed in by the voting delegates of each association individually
but at the same time. Cotu1ting of the votes shall be done by non-voting pa11icipants.

5. A delegate 1nay not speak for more than two [2] minutes on any question under discussion, nor more
than twice on any pa11icular motion or resolution. Any person wishing to speak needs to stand and
come to the microphone (if one is available).

6. 

7. 

Amendments to the Constitution and By-Laws require a two-thirds [2/31 vote of the delegates
present and entitled to vote. Notice of the proposed amendments must have been mailed to all Member
Associations at least ten [IO] weeks prior to the meeting. Modifications to these proposed amendments
received two [2] weeks before the AGM will be considered, but no modification may be made from

the floor.

Resolutions to the Annual General Meeting must have been circulated to the Member Associations 
eight [8] weeks p1ior to the Annual General Meeting. Resoh1tions received after the date specified will 
be presented as Emergency Resolutions only after consideration by the Chainnan of the meeting and 
the Resolutions Committee. Delegates presenting resolutions are reminded that they must be present at 
the time designated on the agenda for the presentation of their resolution. ll1e presenting party may 
speak to the resolution, or amendments thereto, for not more than FIVE [SJ minutes. In addition to 
amendments received two weeks before the AGM there may be amendments emanating from the 
caucus session held earlier, but no further amendments may be made from the floor. 
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PARLIAMENTARY PROCEDURE 

PRINCIPLES PURPOSE 

# Justice and Courtesy for all 
# One thing at a time 

To conduct business in an orderly and 
democratic manner by one or more of the 

# Recognition of the w/1 of the majority 
# Protection of the rights of the minority 

followng !Mlys: communications 

To participate effectively in the proceedings of meetings, 

committee reports 
motions or resolutions 

each person needs to know the fundamentals of parliamentary procedure. 

THE MAIN MOTION 

WHAT IS A MOTION? 

A main motion introduces a new item of business; it is a proposal that the group take a certain action. 
It is the basis of all discussion and states the bounds of discussion. All remarks pertain directly to the 
contents of the motion on the floor. The making of the motion comes first, discussion follows. A 
subsidiary motion qualifies the main motion or proposes an alternate timetable for consideration. 

WHEN IS A MOTION NEEDED? 

It forms a basis for discussion on all major decisions of the group. 

When in doubt, ask for a motion to be proposed. 

Motions must be made on all matters involving finances not already included in the budget as approved. 

On minor matters, a question may be resolved by the chairman Yaking the sense of the meeting'. 

The decision must be clearly stated for the secretary to report in the minutes as 'I.ell as for the benefit 
of the members. 

THE STEPS TO PRESENTING A MOTION ARE: 

1. member stands or raises a hand and says:
"Madame Chairman/Mr. Chairman."
The chairman recognizes the speaker by name.

2. The member says, "I move that . . .  " , stating or reading a motion.

3. Another raises a hand to be identified by the chairman, then says:
"I second the motion." The seconder believes the motion should be discussed, but may not
necessarily be in favour of it.

4. Chairman says, "It has been moved by (name of mover) and seconded by (name of seconder) that . .

. . . . . . . . . . . Is there any discussion?" 

5. The mover usually speaks first, giving the reasons for the motion. The opportunity to speak to the
motion must be given to anyone IAflO wshes to speak to or oppose the motion. Discussion should be
addressed fQ the chairman.

6. At the end of the discussion, the chairman says:
"If there Is no further discussion ... . . . . . . . .  "or nAre you ready for the question?" Then: 
"The motion Is that . . . .  " 

7 



"All In favour?n (pause tM'lile the count is taken by the secretary) 
"Opposed?" (pause tM'lile the count is taken by the secretary) 
"Abstentions?" (pause tM'lile the count is taken by the secretary) 
"The motion is carried" (or is defeated). 

7. If anyone calls "Division" (questions the voice vote), the chair calls for a show of hands or a standing
vote: "All in favour raise your hand. All opposed ... " If a majority request it, the vote may be
taken by ballot. A "ballot vote" is the recommended procedure for election of officers and for
resolving a contentious issue.

SUBSIDIARY MOTIONS 

AMENDMENTS CHANGE MOTIONS: To qualify the idea of a motion, but not to change the subject or 
the intent of the main motion. 

1. "I move to amend the motion by ... . ":
Inserting or adding a oord. phrase or sentence. 
Striking out a tt.0rd, phrase or sentence. 
Striking out and inserting a v.ord or phrase or substituting a sentence or paragraph. 
2. "I second the motion to amend."
3. "It has been proposed to amend the motion to read as follows . . . .  "

The chairman states the main motion and the amendment so the group w/1 understand how the
amendment changes the motion. Amendment is handled in the same way as a motion wth:
Discussion: "Is there any discussion?"
Question: "If there is no further discussion, the amendment Is . . . .  "

Vote: "All in favour of the amendment . . . .  "

Chairman announces the outcome:
"The amendment is carried (or defeated)." 
"The motion now before the meeting ls . . . .  "

(states the motion plus the amendment(s) if it carried) 
In dealing wth motions, the vote is taken first on the amendment. If passed, the amended motion is 
voted on. If the amendment is defeated, the main motion in its original form is voted on. 

TO REFER: A question is referred to committee for further study and to submit a recommendation to 
the group at a later time. 

TO TABLE: To set the matter aside until someone moves to reconsider it. 
TO POSTPONE DEFINITELY: Postpone discussion until more facts are available. 
TO POSTPONE INDEFINITELY: The motion may not be considered again that year. 

► Recommended useful resource materials available for reference during a meeting:
A copy of your organization's Constitution and By-La......s. Robert's Rules of Order or 
other guide to basic rules of parliamentary procedure. 

8 



QUEBEC FEDERATION OF HOME AND SCHOOL ASSOCIATIONS INC. 

LA FEDERATION QUEBECOISE DES ASSOCIATIONS FOYERS-ECOLES INC. 
3285 Cavend•sh Blvd , Suite 560, Montreal, Quebec H4B 2l9 

Tel: (514)481-5619 Fax: (514)481-5610 www.qlhsaorg e ma,r· 1nlo�qfhsa.org 

MINUTES OF THE 2017 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

QUEBEC FEDERATION OF HOME AND SCHOOL ASSOCIATIONS INC. 

Held April 29th, 2017 at the Novotel Hotel in St Laurent, QC 

Registered and present during the 2017 Annual General Meeting were 66 people including special 
guests. 
The theme ofthe 2017 AGM was Education in the 21st Century: The First 20 �ars.

l11ere were 25 local Home & School Associations present. The voting associations were: 

Beacon Hill Elementary 

Christmas Park Elementary 

Gardenview Elementary 

Honore Mercier Elementary 

LaurenHill Academy 

Pierre Elliott Trudeau Elementary 

Souvenir Elementary 

St. Patrick Elementary 

Westwood High School 

AGM BUSINESS SESSION 

Birchwood Elementary 

Dorset Elementary 

Genesis Elementary 

John Rennie High School 

Lindsay Place High School 

Soulanges Elementary 

St. Charles Elementary 

St. Thomas High School 

Wilder Penfield Elementary 

Chelsea Elementary 

Evergreen Elementary 

Hillcrest Academy 

Kingsdale Academy 

Merton Elementary 

South Hull Elementary 

St. Edmund Elementary 

St John Fisher Elementary 

C-'\r c.-n@" ~ , \ \e- E\<o,,..,

TI1e 2017 Annual General Meeting was then officially called to order. � 
Marlyn Browmigg, Registration Credentials, reported that there were presently )$'Home & School 
Associations in attendance which ti.II.filled the requirements for a quonun 

REVIEW OF AGM KIT 

Carol Mei.ndi Executive Director, gave a quick review of the docwnents included in the kit. An

evahiation fon11 would be sent out electronically following the AGM and all delegates were mged to
provide their feedback. A draw for a door prize ofa utility cart would be held at the end of the Business 
Session. 

1. Appointments & Procedures

Parliamentarian
Recording Secretaly
Speakers List
Time Keeper
Executive Director
Credentials

Debi Brown 
Sheila Desonneaux. 
Marlyn Brownrigg 
Rosemary Murphy 

Carol Meindl 
Marlyn Brownrigg 

A Member of the Canadian Home and School Federation 
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QUEBEC FEDERATION OF HOME AND SCHOOL ASSOCIATIONS INC. 

LA FEDERATION QUEBECOISE DES ASSOCIATIONS FOYERS-ECOLES INC. 

Scrutineers 

3285 Cavendish Blvd .. Suile 560, Montreal, Quebec H4B 2l9 

Tel: (514)481-5619 Fax: (514)481-5610 www.qfhsaorg e-mail: info@qfhsaorg 

Rosema1y Mtu-phy 
Debi Brown 

Steering Committee Leah T rineer 
Taniina Ghosh 

MOTION: (Barbara Schnider, Lindsay Place/ Nick Giannakoulis, South Hull) 

moved to accept these appointments. 

AU in favour MOTION CARRIED 

Debi Brown briefly reviewed the Business Meeting Procedures described in the Book of 

Repo1ts, page 10, and the p1inciples of Parliamentary Procedtu-e, pages I 1-13. 

2. Adoption of Agenda -'TI1cre were no additions to the agenda.

MOTION: (Susan Alfonso, St Charles /Lisa Fougere, \\'estwood) to adopt the 

agenda as presented in the book of repo11s .. 

All in fuvour MOTION CARRIED 

3. Ap_proval Of The Minutes Of 2016 AGM (Book of Reports, pages 14-22)

Request to add the word elementa1y to two (2) school names on list of attendees.

MOTION: (Barbara Schnider, Lindsay Place/ Jennifer Buraglia, Evergreen) to 

approve the 2016 AGM Minutes as amended. 

All in favour MOTION CARRIED 

4. President's Report (Book ofRepons, page 23)

Brian Rock, President, spoke to his report. He thanked the Executive Director and the QFHSA

office staff for all their hard work. The President's Rcpo1t was received.

5. Executive Director's Report (Book of Reports, page 24)

6. 

Carol Meindl, Executive Director, spoke to her report, highlighting some of the more important

activities in 2016 such as History Ctu1icultun with the ComECH Committee and the Charitable

Audit. She extended thanks to Staff and Directors. The Executive Director's Report was

received.

Financial Report (Book ofRepo1ts, pages 47-48) 
6. l Wanda Leah Trineer, Treasurer, spoke to the Financial Report. She reported that 2016 was

a stable year for QFHSA in ternlS ofrevenue sow·ces with a reduction of only $2000 from what

was budgeted. However, an increase in expenses in the office as well as liability insurance and

the publishing of the QFHSA NEWS contnbuted to a deficit of $21,199. Efforts will be made

♦ A Member of the Canadian Home and School Federation



QUEBEC FEDERATION OF HOME AND SCHOOL ASSOCIATIONS INC. 

LA FEDERATION QUEBECOISE DES ASSOCIATIONS FOYERS-ECOLES INC. 
3285 Cavendish Blvd., Suite 560, Montreal, Quebec H4B 2L9 

Tel: (514)481-5619 Fax. (514)481-5610 www.qlhsaorg e-ma,r: info@qfhsaorg 

to reduce the cost of the NEWS by adjusting the distribution process. 

MOTION: Gregory Piggins, Kingsdale/ Pam Sidhul Mahal, Birchwood to accept the 

Treasurer's financial report and the Auditor's Financial Review. 

All in Favour MOTION CARRIED 

6.2 Proposed Budget for 20 I 8- The Treasurer presented the proposed budget for 2018. MOTION: 
(Samantha Patel, Merton/ Effie Kontakos, Souvenir) to accept the proposed budget. 

All in Favour MOTION CARRIED 

The Financial report was received. 

6.3 Re-Appointment of Auditor/or 2017- Vere/Ii Arrizza 

MOTION: (Anita Fudalewski, Birchwood/ Leah Trineer, Roslyn) to re-appoint Verelli Anizza as 

auditor for the QFHSA for the year 2017. 

7. 

All in Favour MOTION CARRIED 

Rights, Education And Resolution Committee Report (Book ofRepo11s, page 27-28) 

Linton Gamer spoke to the Rights, Education and Resolution report. He reported on the 

activities of the Rights Committee with COFFEE Quebec and Bill 86 in February 2016 and Bill 

105 in Jtme 2016, the work of ComECH Quebec regarding the omissions in the new History 

Ctmicultm1 and thanked Maiion Daigle for the research work she had done for the Committee. 

8. Nominations Report {Book of Repo11s page 56)

Rosemaiy Mlll"phy, Chair of Nominations Committee, presented the Nominations Repo11. She 

explained the duties and obligations of a director and of an officer. She then introduced the 

nominees for Directors for the 2017-18 tem1, and the nominees for officers. 

Election of Directors/Officers 

Five (Sl Directors had completed the second year of the 2015-2017 tenn: 

Rickhcy Margolcse Lawrence De Poe* Linton Gamer 

Ginette Sauve-Frankel Debi Brown 

Five (5) individuals were commencing the 2nd year of their 2015-2017 terms; 

Rhonda Boucher Wanda Leah Trineer Brian Rock 

♦ A Member of the Canadian Home and School Federation
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QUEBEC FEDERATION OF HOME AND SCHOOL ASSOCIATIONS INC. 

LA FEDERATION OUEBECOISE DES ASSOCIATIONS FOYERS-ECOLES INC. 
3285 Cavendish Blvd., Suite 560. Montreal, Quebec H4B 2L9 

Tel· (514)48\-5619 Fax: (514)481-5610 wwwqfhsaorg e-mail: ,nfo@qlhsa org

Rosemary Murphy Tanima Ghosh 

Nominations for a two-year tenn 2017 - 2019 

Maxime Cote 

*Lawrence DePoe requested and was granted a medical leave of absence of6 months

from his duties as lrrnnediate Past President. 

There were no other nominations from the floor. The Nominations for Directors were 

declared closed. 

Let the record show that the new slate of Directors as presented was elected by acclamation, 

Maxi.me Cote 

Ginette Same-Frankel 

Wanda Leah Trinccr 

Rosemary M tuphy 

Debi Brown 

Linton Garner 

Rhonda Boucher

Brian Rock 

Tanima Ghosh 

Let the record show that the new slate of Officers, as presented by the Nomination Committee, was 

elected by acclamation. 

l\lOTION: (Elisabeth Tosi, John Rennie/ Bobbi B1mm, St Thomas) 

All in favotu· MOTION CARRIED 

President 

Immediate Past President 

Executive Vice-President 

Vice President 

Vice President 

Treasmer 

Secretary 

Brian Rock 

Lawrence DePoe* 

Linton Gamer 

Ginette Sauve-Frankel 

Rosetnary Murphy 

Wanda Leah Trineer 

Debi Brown 

10. Resolutions Report (Book of Reports, page 29)

10.l Disposition of 2016 Resolutions

Carol Meindl spoke to the history ofresolutions and their importance. Resolutions 

♦ A Member of the Canadian Home and School Federation 
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QUEBEC FEDERATION OF HOME AND SCHOOL ASSOCIATIONS INC. 
LA FEDERATION QUEBECOISE DES ASSOCIATIONS FOYERS-ECCLES INC. 

3285 Cavendish Blvd , Suite 560, Montreal, Quebec H4B 2L9 

Tel: (514)481-5619 Fax. (514)481-5610 wwwqfhsaorg e-mail: inlo@qlhsaorg 

and Policy are the lifeblood ofQFHSA. When Quebec Federation was founded 
ahnost 75 years ago, the Constitution tnade clear that resolutions and/or 
recommendations passed at the Annual General Meeting would complement the 
Federation's purpose and objectives. The Mission Statement of the Federation 
also refers to a central ptupose; namely, acting as a voice for parents. Parent's 
involvement in bringing resolutions to the AGM is vital for us to remain a strong 
voice for parents. 
1l1e Resolution 2016/01 SCHOOL BOARD GOVERNANCE: BILL 86

was sent out to all the destinations agreed upon by the caucusing session. Received 
was one acknowledgment from Bruno Pelletier, Political Attache for Premier 
Couillard, acknowledging receipt of otu· letter dated May 20, 2016 with resolution 
2016/0 I attached. 
The Resolutions Repo11 was received. 

10.2 2017 Resolutions from the floor 

There were no resolutions from the floor. 
10.3 2017-01 Libraries and Librarians 

2017-02 Diversity and Inclusion 

2017-03 History of Residential Schools 

2017-04 Quebec Secondary III and IV History Curriculum in need of 

Change* 

2017-05 Software Coding* 

to be caucused* 

12. Caucus Session on Resolutions-

The delegates requested to discuss the resolution and propose improvement to 
the wording without changing the oiiginal intent. The caucus sessions were 
moderated by Carol Meindl and Rose1nary Murphy. 

13. Vote on Resolutions:

2017/01 Funding for Libraries and Librarians (2011/01)

MOTION: As proposed by Marion Daigle, Resolution was tabled and sent back to
Literacy Committee for nX>re discussion.
The following Resolutions were reaffirmed:
2017/02 Diversity and Inclusion (2015/01)

MOTION: (n-icia Steeves, Chelsea Elementary/ Pam Sidul Mahal,

♦ A Member of the Canadian Home and School Federation 
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Birchwood)to accept the reaffinnation of resolution 2017/02. 
All in Favour MOTION CARRIED 

2017/03 History of Residential schools (2015/02) 

MOTION: (Lisa Fougere, \Vesh,ood / Sharad Bhargava, St Thomas) 

to accept the reaffinnation of resolution 2017/03. 
All in Favour MOTION CARRIED 

Introduction of the following hm (2) new Resolutions for caucusing. 

2017/04 Quebec Secondary Ill and IV History Curriculum in need of Change. 

MOTION: (Effie Kontakos, Souvenir/ Jennifer Buraglia, Evergreen) to 
accept reso lt1tion 20 l 7 /04. 

AU in Favour MOTION CARRIED 

2017/05 Sofh,·are Coding 

MOTION: (Kendra Hutcheon, St Charles/ Sharad Bhargava, St Thomas) 

to accept resolution 20 I 7 /05. 
All in Favour MOTION CARRIED 

14. Regional Councils- Introduced at the AGM two years ago, the regional council portion

15. 

of the AGM has become a much-anticipated part of the day Delegates were divided into
tlu·ee groups two (2) elementary-level and one ( l )  high school group. Topics in elementa1y
session were: Relationship between Hon-ie and School and the Governing Board, principal and
teacher representation at Home and School meetings, capital projects, focusing on your
commtuuty, fundraising (successfuVnot successfi.11), onl..ine payn�nts and ordering, sotu·cing
supplies/gjfts in bulk.

For High Schools session topics discussed were: How to boost active membership and get 
elen-ientary schools to promote joining Home and School in high school, Powerpoint overview 
of volunteering, revamping volunteer application. 

Installation of Board of Directors for 2017-18 

Carol Meindl, Past-President ofQFHSA (2009-2011 ), installed the Board of Directors for 
2017-18. 

♦ A Member of the Canadian Home and School Federation 
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16. Adjournment
MOTION: (Lisa Fougere, Wesh,ood / Pam Sidul Mahal) to adjotu11 the meeting at

5:00p.m

All in favow· MOTION CARRIED 

Membership/ Nensletter Prizes 

Membership awards were presented by Marlyn Browruigg, Membership Services Coordinator and 

Carol MeindL Executive Director to five (5) local associations: Beacon Hill Elementary, Edgewater 

Elementa1y, St. Edmw1d Elementa1y, St. Anthony Elementary, MountainVJew Elementary. A farewell 

was offered to Shetwood Forest, St Paul's, Thorndale, Greendale, St. Lawrence Jr./Sr. and Orchard 

and a welcome to our new merged Home and School Associations: Kingsdale Academy, Sherbrooke 

Academy, LaSalle Jr./ Sr. Also joining the QFHSA are Grosse Isle Elementary, Butler Elementary and 

Children's World Academy. 

Newsletter Awards, which were judged and chosen by Mattha Farley, Carol Meindl and Carol Ohlin 

were presented to one (I) Elementary School: Pie1Te Elliott Tmdeau Elementary and one ( l) High 

School; Beaconsfield High School. 

1l1e draw was held for the door p1ize: Utility ca1t. l11e winner was Roslyn Elementary. 

Brian Rock, President 

Date 

Debi Brown, Secretary 

Date 

♦ A Member of the Canadian Home and School Federation 
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PRESIDENT'S REPORT 

Report to the Annual General Meeting on April 28, 2018 

Submitted by Brian Rock, President 

TI1e twelve months since the 2017 AGM have been eventful ones. Here is a snapshot of the highlights. 

May - l11e Rights Committee members were active in the Press Conference of the Committee for the 

Emichment of the C\uTiculum of the History of Quebec (ComECH). May also saw QUESCREN -

CIRLM (Quebec English-Speaking Communities Research Network - Canadian Institute for Research 

on Linguistic Minorities) host a conference entitled: Bill 101 at 40: The Charter of the French 

Language and Quebec's English- speaking Communities 1977 - 2017. l11e QFHSA President, 

representing QFHSA, made the following presentation: The Quebec Federation of Home and School 

Associatio11s: Tl,e Strong Voice of Parents Regwdi11g Language legislatio11fro111 Bill JOI to Bill 

105 (1977 - 2017). ll1is powerpoint presentation was an analysis of the roles played by parent 

voltu1tecrs tlu·ough the QFHSA, its committees and its local associations over the past 40 years. l11e

activities of the Rights Committee were highlighted.

The Quebec Conm1tmity Groups Network held its Annual General Meeting in June, and QFHSA 

delegates presented a notice of motion regarding the establisluncnt of an ad hoc Committee on 

Elections. 

September saw successtitl Executive Workshops being well attended with dynamic interchanges and 
networking opportunities. 

l11e Fall Conference in October was hosted by the Piell'e Elliott Trudeau Elementary Home and School 
Association of the Lester B. Pearson School Board. Congratulations on a job so very well done! 

November produced a meeting with the Advisory Board of English Education as well as an opportlmity 
for QFHSA to host an infonnation booth at the Quebec Provincial Association ofTeachers' 
Convention. 

In December, the President requested a medical leave of absence to undergo surgery. Complications 

led to extended hospitalization and additional leaves of absence during January and February 2018. A 

sincere thank you is extended to Executive Vice-President Linton Gamer who stepped in and agreed to 

serve as Acting President dtuing these leaves of absence. 

I would like to congratulate the QFHSA Executive Committee and Board of Directors, local association 

Presidents & Executive Members, and all the H & S volunteers, who are so dedicated to making our 

schools better places in which to learn for our children. A final thank you for the excellent work 

accomplished by our Executive Director Carol Meindi Membership Coordinator Marlyn Brownrigg, 

Administrative Assistant Sheila Desormeaux, and to Mation Daigle and Carol Ohlin of the 

History/ Archives Project. 
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Executive Director 
Report to the Annual General Meeting, April 28, 2018 

Submitted by Carol MeindL Executive Director 

The duties of the QFHSA Executive Director are 'hiany and va1ied" and include such responsibilities 
as advising the Board of Directors, managing the office, fostering comrmuuty relations, exploring 
community partnerships, securing operational funding, approving expenditures and managing human 
resources and special projects. It is this variety that keeps the job interesting. Below are some of the 
highlights of 2017-18. 

ComECH Press Conference May 2, 2017: ll1e QFHSA continued its active participation with 
ComECH (Committee for the Enhancement of the Curriculum of History of Quebec) and was there at 
the Press conference on May 2, 2017, where we supported Robert Green and offered ow· own 
concern over the glaring omissions in the new History Curriculwn We continue to press the Miluster of 
Education to acknowledge that there arc problems with this curriculw11 that must be addressed. 

OFHSA Presentation at OUESCREN: QUESCREN hosted a symposnun as part of ACFAS 
(L'Association francophone pow· le savoir) in May 2017: Bill JOI at 40: The Charter of the French 
Language and Quebecs English-speaking co111111w1ities, 1977-20/7". Brian Rock was invited to 
make a presentation on behalf of QFHSA to highlight the contributions of our parents through their 
Home and School activity during the introduction and subsequent challenge of Bill l O 1. His presentation 
'The Quebec Federation of Home and School Associations (QFHSA): the strong voice of parents 
regarding language legislation from Bill IO I to Bill l 05 ( 1977-2017) was well received and he was 
invited to provide a chapter in an upcoming publication of the 2017 Conference presentations. 

Western Quebec & Lester B. Pearson Regional Councils: Membership organized two ve1y 
successful Regional Cotu1cil meetings, one in Westem Quebec and the other in the Lester B. Pearson 
School Board. These were excellent opportunities for Home and School Associations in a shared region 
to come together to leam more about their role in the larger Federation and with their regional sister 
associations. 

Canada Revenue Agency Charitable Audit: Believe it or not, the audit was a rewarding experience 
for all of us, as it made it necessary to take a good long look at who we are and what we are trying to 
accomplish as an organization. It helped us fine tune mu· policies and procedw·es and improve on them 

Advisory Board on English Education: We were invited to present our findings from our survey, 
"Why do we need English Schools?" to ABEE and discussed the perspective of parents regarding why 
English education remains impo1tant in Quebec. 

Fall Conference 2017: Keynote speakers at Fall Conference 2017 were Michael Canuel and Noel 
Burke, who addressed our theme of "Education il1 the 21 �, Century: the next 20 years" by introducing 
our members to their NEXTschoo/ initiative, and their vision of the futtu·e for High school education in 
Quebec's English public schools. Their presentation was so well received that it inch1ded a standing 
ovation, which is still being talked about. Today's parents clearly agreed that the structure of education 
in Quebec needs to change. 

17 



NEXTschool Design Strategy Group & Design lnnopod Sessions: In response to the 
overwhchlnng support that the NEXTschool presentation received at Fall Conference, three (3) Home 
and School parents were chosen to join the Design Innopod Sessions, along with members of other 
stakeholders in education. These grass roots level design sessions will create prototypes to be integrated 
into lead high schools. Home and School is playing a role in the grotu1d work for this impo1tant initiative. 

Youth Exploring Science: This year's Youth Exploring Science program was facilitated by Le Nichoir, 
a bird sanctuaiy located in Hudson, QC. Jo-Annie Gagnon, Education Coordinator, taught the students 
many interesting fucts about birds, as well as how to recognize different injrnies that birds can suffer and 
how to treat them. 

AU irt all, a ve1y productive year and I am looking fo1ward to continuing to work with everyone in 2018. 
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FINANCE COMM ITIE.:E 
Report to the Annual General Meeting, April 28, 2018 
Submitted by Leah Trincer, Treasurer 

Members: Leah Trineer (Treasurer), Carol Meindl (Executive Director), Suanne Stein Day, 
Sheila Desomieaux (Administrative Assistant) 

Mandate: Prepare annual budgets for the Quebec Federation of Home and School 
Associations Inc. (QFHSA) Board of Directors and its Committees. Review accounting 
procedures, the auditor's report and the expense sheets for directors. Prepare 
recomniendations for the membership and administration fees. Review the Charitable 
lnfomiation Renun. Oversee the finances, comparing actual results to budgets and prepare 
financial reports and reco1rnnendations for the Board to review at its periodic meetings. 
Reviews the financial reports submitted by the local home and schools. 

Activities: 
• Prepared the Proposed 2019 Budget for 2018 AGM.
• Reviewed and revised policies and procedures on expense reporting.
• Shared financial report infonnation at Board of Director and Executive Meetings.
• Cooperated with Canadian Revenue Agency in a Cha1itable Audit.
• Review audit repo11 for fiscal year ended December 31st.

Financial changes: The board acknowledged that we follow generally accepted accounting 
principles for non-profit organizations. 

Funding: Provincial and Federal fonding remained stable as confidence with the work we do 
continues. Canadian Heritage gave QFHSA a two year fimding grant for 2018-2020 of 
$95,000 per year. The Ministry of Education has again divided the 2017-18 grant into two 
payments: $15,000 in April 2018 and $10,000 in September 2018. 

Donations: CanadaHelps- QFHSA continues to accept donations from CanadaHelps to 
defray cost ofQFHSA projects and program.s. 

Budget: Please see the approved budget for 2018 and the proposed budget for 2019 fiscal 
year and the financial statement for Janua1y 1 to December 3 I, 2017. 

RECOMMENDATION: 111c Finance Committee recomniends that the proposed budget for 
2019 be approved by the membership at the Annual General Meeting, April 28, 2018. 

Finance Committee also submits a notice of motion to be brought to the 2018 A.GM to increase 
membership fee to $20.00 for 2019-20 school year. Note: Last increase of rnembership fee 
was to $18 in 20 I 0. Accepts Auditors Report for 2018. 
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REVIE\Y ENGAGEMENT REPORT 

To the dirccto1·s of Quebec Federation of Home and School Associations 

We have reviewed the accompanying fiirnncial statements of Quebec federation of Home and School 
Associations (f,ederation) thnt comprise the statement of ftnnncial position as at December 31, 2017, .ind the 
statements of changes in net assets, operations an<.l cash !lows for the year lhen ended, and a summary of 
signilicant accoun1ing policies and other explanatory information. 

Mn11nge111e11l's Re.\po11sibilizvfnr the Fi11unciul State111e11ts 
Management is responsible for the preparation ,,nd fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organiz.ation and for such internal control as 
management determines is 11ecessary to enable the prcpara1 iun of financial statc1m:nts that arc free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Practitirmer 1.\· Re.\po11.\·ibili(v 
Our responsibility is to express n conclusion 011 the accompanying finan<.:ial statements based on our review. 
We conducted our review in accordance with Canadian generally accepted standards for review engagements, 
which require us to comply with relevant ethical requir�rncnts. 

A review of fi11cmcial statements in accordance with C.-rnadian generally accepted standards for n.:vi<.;w 
engagements is a limited assurance engag<.;n1c11t. The practitioner pcrfonns procedures, primarily consisting of 
making inquiries of managemcnt and ot!it:rs within the Fcdcrntion, as appropriate, and applying analytical 
procedures, and evaluates the evidence obtained. 

The procedures performed in a review are substantially less in extent than, and vary in nature from, those 
performed in an audit conducted in a<.;cord:1nce with Canadian gcnernlly accepted auditing standards. 
/\ccordingly, we do not express an audit opinion 011 these financial statements. 

Co11c/11sio11 
Dased on om review, nothing has coII1c to our atte11tinn that causes 11s to believe that the financial staterrn.:nb 
do not present fairly, in all material rcspe�·ts, the financial position of the Federation as at December 31, 2017, 
and the results of its operations a11d its cash flow:. for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian 
a�ards for not-for profit organ;,.at;ons 

Pointe Claire, Quebec 
April 12, 2018 

By I Anthony Ven.:lli, CPA-Auditor, CA 

2 
755 boul. St-Jean, bureau 201, Pointe Claire, QC H9R 5M9 
Telephone: (514) 694-80°12 

Telecopieur: (514) 630-7550



QUEBEC FEDERATION OF HOME AND SCHOOL ASSOCIATIONS 
(Incorporated under the laws of Quebec) 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2017 
(Unaudited) 

2017 2016 

CURRENT 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Marketable securities 
Funds held in trust (Note 3) 
Membership fees receivable 
Sales taxes receivable 
Grant receivable 

ASSETS 

$ 137,399 

9,500 
4,564 
6,843 

25,000 
_____ Prepaid �xpcnscs 6,234 

----------------------�-

$ 

LIABILITIES 

CURRENT 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 4) $ 

Donations payable 
Deferred program grants (Nole 5) 
Deferred mcmbcrship fees (Note 6) ····-·-------------·-

·---· ·--------··--·-- -----··-

NET ASSETS 

NET ASSETS RESTRICTED FOR A \VARDS 
PURPOSES (NOTE 3) 

UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS 

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD: 

Director 

Director 
3 

23 

-·-··---

$ 

189,540 

16,221 

40,417 

56,823 
113,461 

9,500 
66,579 
76,079 

189,540 

$ 143,841 
7,653 
9,500 
7J67 
6,005 

25,000 
3,597 

$ 202,963 

$ 20,473 
2,597 

40,417 

68,313 
131,800 

9,500 
61,§.§__ 
71,163 

$ 202,963 



QUEBEC FEDERATION OF HOl\lE AND SCHOOL ASSOCIATIONS 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 
(Unaudited) 

H.estrirtcd
for awards

lJ11rcstd1:tcd 2017 2016 --------------------------�p_11_1·�p1_,s_c._s _ 
·--------------···----·------

TIALANCE - BEGINNING OF Y£AR \ 9,500 S 61,663 

Exccsc; (deficiency of) revenue�; liver c:\pcn�cs _____________ - __ ______ 4,916 __

$ 71,163 S 92,362 

4,916 (21,199) 

llAL/\NCE - l�ND OF YEAR ___ s__ 9,500 _:_ .::,-,_ $c-7:.-c-_--=G='6 ,'=5=79,__-====$=7=6==,0=7=9==S=' =7=1,=1=63= 

4 
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QlJl�llEC FEUEH.ATION OF HOME AND SCHOOL ASSOCIATIONS 

STATEMF:NT OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECE.MBER 31, 2017 
(Unaudited) 

2017 

REVF,NlJES $ 237,436 

EXPENSES 
CHSF Affiliation fees and others 2,150 
Travel and conferences 29,064 
I lome and school news 18,279 
Committee costs J,201 
Insurance 17,134 
Provincial office 

Postage and courier 1,851 
Office supplies 8,834 
Telecommunications and Internet 4,922 
Profossional fees 8,292 
Rent, electricity and occltpancy charges 26,006 
Salaries and employee benefits 91,271 

Fees and honorariums 12,170 
Yes Project 6,629 

Literacy projects 1,917 
I listory and archive project 503 
Other projects 351 
Increase in fair value of marketable securities (54) 

232,520 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY OF) REVENUES 
OVER EXPENSES $ 4,916 

-· 

5 

25 

2016 

$ 211,0�_1 __

2,150 
28,114 
19,776 

8,004 
16,724 

1,760 
I 1,782 
6,471 
5,271 

25,344 
84,819 
12,224 

6,146 
3,193 

1,364 

(9,m_ 
232,200 

$ (21,199) _, 
.. 



QUltBEC FEDERATION OF HOME AND SCHOOL ASSOCJATlONS 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW 

FOR THE YEAR ENDF:D DECF,MBER 3 J, 2017 
(lJnaudikd) 

OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Excess (deficiency of) revenues over exp�nses 
Item not uffecting cash: 

Increase in fair value of marketabl� sccurit ics 

Decrease (increase) in membership fees receivable 
Decrease (increase) in sales taxes receivable 
Increase in grants receivable 
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Increase (decrease) in donations payable 
Increase in deferred program grants 
Increase (decrease) in deferred membership fees 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

INVESTING ACTIVITY 

$ 

2017 2016 

4,916 $ (21,199) 

(54) (942)
4,862 (22,141)

2,803 (7,367) 
(838) 3,035

(18,500)
(2,637) 11,652
(4,252) 2,298 
(2,597) 2,597 

1,250 
{11,490) 28,442 
(14,149) 1,266 

Proceeds on sale of marketable securities _________________ _ ____________________ 7,�7_0_7 _______ _
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITY 7,707 

- - - - ·-----·- --· -�---------
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH 

EQUIVALENTS 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING 
OF YEAR 

(6,442) 1,266 

143,841 142,575 
·--------··- - --·· - ·------ • ------------· -------.........:.....--------'----

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CONSIST OFTIIE 
FOLLOWING: 

Cash 
T-Bill Fund

6 

26 

$ 137,399 $ 143,841 

$ I I 6 ,990 $ 123,505 
20,409 -------- 20,336 

$ 137,399 $ 143,841 



QUEBEC FEDERATION OF HOME AND SCHOOL ASSOCIATIONS 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2017 
(Unaudited) 

2017 2016 -----------

REVENUES 

Membership fees - family 
Membership fees - individuals 
Federal Canadian heritage program grant 
Quebec government grant 
Other provincial grant 
Other project revenues 
Other revenues - t, '� I 0\"\S

News• advertising and subscriptions 
Conferences 
Interest earned 
Administration fees received 

Donations received for locals 
Donations remitted to locals 

--------- - . - ---

$ 

$ 
---- -•·--

7 

27 

96,725 $ 74,028 
92 72 

95,000 93,750 
25,000 25,000 

900 

1,717 1,197 
4,544 2,085 

300 701 
8,710 8,736 

548 232 
4,800 4 300 

237,436 211,001 

20,551 42,724 
{20,551) {42.724) 

237,436 $ 211,001 



QlJitBEC FEDERATION OF HOME AND SCHOOL ASSOCIATIONS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2017 
(Unaudited) 

1. NATlJRE AND Pl.JRPOSl: OF THE FEDER.I\ TION

The Quebec Federation of Home ,11H.l School Associations (federation) is an incorporated, 
independent, not-for-profit volunteer organization dedicated to enhancing the education and 
general well-being of children and youth. ll promotes the involvement of parents, students, 
educators and the commuuity at large in the advancement of learning i:lnd acts as a voice for 
pnrcnts. The f-'cdcration is i.l registered not-for-profit organi1.ation. 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

:t) The Federation applies the Canadian accounting standi.m.ls for not-fo1-profit 
organizations as set out in Part Ill or the CIC!\ handbook, hereafter referred to as 
"ASNPO". 

h) Revenue Recognition

The Federation uses the dclcrrnl method of accounting and recognizes revenue in the
period i11 which the related expenses are incurred. Under the deferral 111cthocl,
endowment contrihutions arc rcrortccl as direct increases in net assets.

i) Membership fees arc received mostly in the Fall nf each year and arc takt:n into
revenue over the period from the first of September lo the following thirty-first or

August.

ii) Program funding and grnnts :.ire received from Federal nnd Provincial agencies.
The revenue from Federal agencies is recognized over the donor fiscal year which
is from the first day of April to the following thirty-first day of Mmch. ·1 he
revenue from the Provincial agency is from the Ministry of Education and i�
recognized over the period from the lirst day of September to the following thirty­
first day of August.

iii) All other revenues are recognized when received.

c) Expensing Capital Assets

The Federation expenses all capital assets in the year they arc acquired.
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QUEBEC FEDERATION OF HOME AND SCHOOL ASSOCIATIONS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2017 
(Unaudited) 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

d) Contributed Services

All volunteers at all levels of the federation contribute approximately 28,300 hours per
year (2016: 28,900) to assis1 the federation in rnrrying out its activities. Because of the
difficulty in determining their fair value. contributed services are not recognized in the
financial statements.

c) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management lL) make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the repo1ied
amounts of revenues and expenses for the periods covered.

The main estimates relate to the impairmenl of financial assets.

f) Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Federation's policy is to disclose bank balances under cash and cash equivalents
including bunk overdrafts with balances that Oucluatc from being positive to overdrawn
and temporary investments with a maturity period of three months or less from the date
of acquisition.

g) Financial Instruments

Initial and Subsequent Measurement

The federation initially measures its financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value, except for certain related party t1ansuUions that arc measured at the carrying
amount or the exchange amount, as appropriate.

The Federation subsequently measures all of its financial assets and financial liabilities
at cost or mno1iized cost except for marketable securities that arc quoted in an active
market, which arc measured at fair value. Changes in fair value of these financial
instruments are recognized in th� statement of' operations during the year.

Financial assets measured at amorti:1.cd cost on a straight-line basis include cash and
cash equivalents, membership fees receivable and grant receivable.

9 
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QlJEllEC FEDERATION OF HOME AND SCHOOL ASSOCIATIONS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2017 
(Unaudited) 

2. SICNIFIC'ANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CO�T'D)

h) Financial lnstrnmcnts (Cont'd)

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost on a straight-line basis include the
accou11ts payable and accrut:d liabilities, clon[l\ions payable, deferred program gr,111ts
anti deferred membership fees.

Financial assets measured at foir value include marketable securities.

Transaction Costs

Trnnsaclion costs related to (inancial instruments that will be subscqL11.:ntly measun:c\ at
foir valtH.: me recognized in the statement of operations in the year incurred. Transaction
costs related to financial ins1ruments subsequently measured at amortized cost are
included in the original cost of the asset or kibility and recognized in the statement of
operations over the life of the instrument using the straight-line method.

Impairment

For financial assets measured nt cost or amortized cost, the Fcderatit111 delcrmi11cs

whether there arc indications of possible impairment. When there is an indication or
irnpainm:nt, and the Federation determines that a significant adverse cliangt.: has
occurred during the year in the expected timing or amount of future cash flows, a write­
clown is recognized in the statement of opcr<1tions. A previously recognized impairment
loss may be reversed to the extent of the improvement. The carrying amount of the
ti11c1ncial asset may not be greater than the amount that would have been reported at the
date of th� reversal had the impairment not been recognized previously. ·1 he amount of
the reversal is recognized in the statement of operations.

J. FUNDS IIELD IN TRUST

The federation has runds in trust mnounting to $9,500 (20 I 6: $9,500). Tile donors have
rcqucc;tcd that the interest earned on the funds in trust be used to pay for aw,irds given out at
the.: annual general meeting. A committee was formed tu consider all submissions for the
awards, and to choose the ones they consider best meet the guidelines.

10 
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QUEBEC FEDERATION OF HOME AND SCHOOL ASSOCIATIONS 

NOTES TO FINANC1AL STATEMENTS

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2017

(linauditcd) 

4. ACCOUNTS PA YADLE AND ACCRlJED LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities consist of the following:

Trade account payables and accrued liabilities 
/\mount payable in respect of government remittances 

$ 

2017 

8,570 
4,864 
2,787 Amounts due to empl,_o

_._

y_cc_·s_· --------------�---

5. DEFERRED PROGRAM GRANTS

The deferred program grants from Canadian Heritage and
the Quebec Ministry of Education are utilized for operating
activities and are calculated as follows:

Balance - Beginning of year 

Plus: Amount received for subsequent vear _______ 

I ,ess: /\mount received in the prior year n.:cogni7.l'cl 
as revenue in the current vear 

Balance - End of year 

1 I 

31 

$ J (i,221 

2017 

$ 40,417 

40,417 
80,834 

{40,417) 

$ 40,417 

2016 

$ 19,100 
588 
785 

$ 20,473 

2016 

$ 39,167 

40,417 
79,584 

p�,167)_ 

$ 40,417 



QUEBEC FEDERATION OF HOME AND SCHOOL ASSOCIATIONS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

AS AT DECEMBER 31,2017 
(Unauditc<.I) 

6. DEF£RRFD MEMBERSHIP FEES

The deferred rnemhership fees are from men1bers of the
Federation and are utilized for operating activities.

Balance - lh-ginning of Yt.·a.-

Plus: /\mount received <.lurint2 the \·ear 

$ 

-�-- --- --------------------->'---'--- --------

l ,css: /\mount received in the prior yc.:ar recognized
as revenue during the current year 

Balance - End of Y car 

8. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial Risks:

$ 

2017 

68,313 s 

56,823 
125,136 

(68,313) 

56,823 $ 

2016 

39,871 

68,313 
108,184 

(39,871 ) ___ 

68,313 

The Federation is exposc.:d to various risks through its financial instruments \\ ithout being
l'Xposed to coneentrntions of risk. The main risks arc broken down bekl\v:

a) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial lo�s
for tht: Federation by foiling to discharge an obligation. The Federation's main credit
ri�ks rc:late to membership fees rc:cci, able and grant receivable.

12 
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QUitBEC FEDERATION OF HOME AND SCHOOL ASSOCIATIONS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2017 
(Unautlitccl) 

8. FINANCIAL INSTRUMfi:NTS (CONT'D)

b) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the federation will encounter difficulty in mceti1 g
obligations associated with financial liabilities. The Federation is exposed to this risk
mainly in respect of its trade accounts payables and accrued liabilities and donations
payable.

c) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Federation is
exposed to interest rate risk on its fixed and floating interest rate financial instruments.
Fixed interest rate instruments subject the Federation to a fair value risk, since fair value
fluctuates inversely lo changes in market interest rates. Floating interest rate instruments
subject the Federation to related cash flow risk.

d) Other Price Risk

Other price risk is the risk that th� fair value or future cash Hows of a financi:11
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising
from intert.:st rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors
sp 'cific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all
similar financial instruments trnded in the market. The Fcclcrntion is cxposc:d to other
price risk through its invt.:stments in listed securities for which the value fluctuates with
the quoted mark<.-:t price.

13 
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QUEBEC FEDERATION OF HOME AND SCHOOL ASSOCIATIONS FINANCIAL REPORT 

REVENUE 

Membership & Services Income 

FAMILY MEMBERSHIP REVENUE 

ADMINISTRATION FEE REVENUE 

NEWS REVENUE (SUBSCRIPTIONS & ADVERTISING) 

INDIVIDUAUGROUP AFFILIATE 

CANADIAN HERITAGE ANNUAL PROJECT 

MELS GRANTS INCOME 

OTHER GRANTS 

AGM CONFERENCE REVENUE 

FALL CONFERENCE REVENUE 

INTEREST REVENUE 

PROJECT REVENUE 

DONATIONS 

MISCELLANEOUS 
lrorAL REVENUE 

EXPENSES 

LEGAL & AUDIT 

INSURANCE 

SALARIES 

WAGE LEVIES 

RENT & BUSINESS TAXES 

OFFICE EXPENSES 

TELECOMMUNICATIONS 

POSTAGE/COURIER 

NEWS PRINTING AND POSTAGE 

PROMOTIONAL ACTIVITIES & MATERIALS 

FALL CONFERENCE 

AGM CONFERENCE 

LOCAL DEVELOPMENT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS TRAVEL 

STAFF DEVELOPMENT 

COMMITTEE EXPENSES 

CHSF EXPENSES 

SPECIAL PROJECT 

CONTRACTS.EDITOR.ARCHIVIST, TRANS 

I TOTAL EXPENSES

NET INCOME Lc\e,{�c�-f)

34 

2017 2017 

ACTUALS BUDGET 

96,725.00 $ 80,000.00 

4,800.00 $ 5,500.00 

300.00 s 2,500.00 

92.00 

95,000.00 $ 95,000.00 

25,000.00 s 25,000.00 

$ 1,100.00 

6,530.00 $ 5,000.00 

2,180.00 $ 4,000.00 

548.00 s 200.00 

1,717.00 s 5,000.00 

4,544.00 

$ 450.00 
237,436.00 223,750.00 

3,292.22 s 7,100.00 

21,822.99 s 15,000.00 

82,413.02 $ 83.000.00 

8,857.94 $ 8,000.00 

26,820.73 $ 24,350.00 

9.167.20 $ 7,500.00 

4,096.78 s 5,000.00 

1,851.48 $ 4,500.00 

10,694.80 $ 10.000.00 

2,998.44 $ 900.00 

6,464.48 $ 6,500.00 

17,887.65 $ 17,450.00 

2,738.38 $ 4,000.00 

6,589.07 $ 3,500.00 

20.98 $ 250.00 

1,986.17 $ 2,250.00 

2,150.00 $ 4,500.00 

9,125.56 $ 11,500.00 

13,542.11 $ 12,600.00 

232,520.00 227,900.00 

4,916.00 -$ (4,150.00) 



QUEBEC FEDERATION OF HOME AND SCHOOL ASSOCIATIONS 

REVENUE 2018 2019 

BUDGET BUDGET 

Membership & Senices Income 
FAMILY MEMBERSHIP REVENUE $ 80,000.00 $ 84,000.00 
ADMINISTRATION FEE REVENUE $ 5,000.00 $ 4,500.00 
NEWS REVENUE (SUBSCRIPTIONS & ADVERTISING) $ 2,500.00 $ 2,500.00 
INDIVIDUAL/GROUP AFFILIATE $ 100.00 $ 350.00 
CANADIAN HERITAGE ANNUAL PROJECT $ 95,000.00 $ l 00,000.00 
MELS GRANTS INCOME $ 25,000.00 $ 25,000.00 
OTHER GRANTS $ 5,000.00 762.50 
AGM CONFERENCE REVENUE $ 9,000.00 $ 6,500.00 
FALL CONFERENCE REVENUE $ 1,500.00 $ 3,000.00 
INTEREST REVENUE $ 200.00 $ 

PROJECT REVENUE $ 1,200.00 $ 700.00 
DONATIONS $ 300.00 
MISCELLANEOUS $ 700.00 
I TOTAL REVENUE $ 224,800.00 s 22s,o 12.so 1 

EXPENSES 

LEGAL & AUDIT $ 7,250.00 $ 7,250.00 
INSURANCE $ 19,000.00 $ 17,000.00 
SALARIES $ 80,000.00 $ 82,900.00 
WAGE LEVIES $ 11,250.00 $ 12,000.00 
RENT & BUSINESS TAXES $ 25,000.00 $ 26,000.00 
OFFICE EXPENSES $ 12,000.00 $ 10,630.00 
TELECOMMUNlCA TIONS $ 5,000.00 $ 4,500.00 
POST AGE/COURIER $ 2,700.00 $ 4,500.00 
NEWS PRINTING AND POST AGE $ 11,500.00 $ 9,000.00 
PROMOTIONAL ACTIVITIES & MATERIALS $ 900.00 
FALL CONFERENCE $ 5,000.00 $ 5,500.00 
AGM CONFERENCE $ 14,000.00 $ 17,500.00 
LOCAL DEVELOPMENT $ 2,500.00 $ 3,200.00 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS TRAVEL $ 3,500.00 $ 2,500.00 
STAFF DEVELOPMENT $ 250.00 
COMMITTEE EXPENSES $ 1,650.00 $ 1,500.00 
CHSF EXPENSES $ 4,650.00 $ 4,150.00 
SPECIAL PROJECT $ 8,750.00 $ 10,100.00 
CONTRACTS:EDITOR,ARCHIVIST, TRANS $ 8,000.00 $ 9,200.00 
TOT AL EXPENSES $222,000.00 $ 228,330.00 

NET INCOME I ch 1L,,\-) ct 
$ ( 317.50) 1.. ':500 
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NOMINATIONS Committee 

Report to the Annual General Meeting, April 28, 2018 

Submitted by Rosemary Mui:phy, Nominations Chair 

Mandate: To receive nominations for, and to rccrnit qualified people to the Board of Directors. The 

tenn of office for a Director is two years and each year, ideally, halfofthe Board of Director positions 

come up for election. TI1e Board consists of up to 20 elected Directors, plus the Past President. 

TI1e first call for nominations was emailed to the local associations on Dec 8, 2017 with a deadline set 

for Febnia1y l 0, 2018. Nominees must be paid members in good standing. [QFHSA By-laws Article 

VI.4] Nominations should be signed by at least two, and preferably three, persons from the local

Association and'or the QFHSA Board of Directors.

Deadline: TI1e deadline for receiving norninations to be voted on at the AGM was April 3, 2018. 

Nominations received after that date would be considered by the Board of Directors for appointment. 

[QFHSA Standing Rltles A11icle Vll.3] 

Current Directors servin2 the two-year term 2017-2019: 

Lawrence DePoe** Linton Gamer 
Ginette Sauve-Frankel Debi Brown 

Maxnne Cote 

**Lawrence DePoe se1ves as Immediate Past President and is non-voting 

Current Directors completing the two-year term 2016-18: 

Rhonda Boucher 
Rosemary Murphy 

Wanda Leah Trineer 
Tanima Ghosh 

Brian Rock 

Nominees: As of April 3, 2018, the committee has received the following nominations and proposes 

the following slate ofnominecs for election to the Board of Directors 2018-2020 

Wanda Leah Trinecr 

Brian Rock 

Rosemary Murphy 

Michael Nalecz 
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Officers of the Federation: According to the By-laws [Al1icle ii.2 (a)] "The officers of the 

Federation shall be elected anmtally at the A111111al General Meeting.from among the Directors 

of the Federation." These positions can be nominated from the list of present Directors as well as 

from the list ofnewly-electcd Directors. 

Current President (2017-2019): Brian Rock in.fonned the Board at its April 101
'\ 2018 meeting of his 

resignation as president and intention to serve as Immediate Past President. 111e Executive Past '1: -e­
President will be nominated to complete year two of the President's mandate. 

Nominees for the Officers of the Federation 2018-2019 

President- Linton Garner 
Executive Vice President - Rose1nary Mmphy 
Vice President - Ginette Sauve- Frankel 
Vice president - Maxime Cote 
Treasurer - Leah Trineer 
Secretary- Debi brown 

Resolution: Be it moved that the slate of nominees for the Board of Directors 2018-2020 be 
accepted. 

Resolution: Be it 1110\'cd that the slate of nominee for the Officers of the Federation 2018-2019 be 
accepted. 

Committees 

Committee chairs can be held by a Director or an individual appointed by the Board. Voltmteers are 
always welcome to participate on any Connnittee that interests them Olli' most active Committees, at 
the present time, arc: Rights & Resolutions, Education & Literacy, and Membership. 
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Education Committee Report 
Report to the Annual General Meeting April 28, 2018 
Submitted by: Debi Brown, Chair and Carol Mcindl Executive Director 

Committee members - Debi Brown (Chair), Carol Meindl (Executive Di.rector), Sheila Desom1eaux
(Office Administrator), Jacqueline Barbieti (VohU1teer) 

In 2017, the Board of Directors re-organiz.ed the committees and as a result the Literacy committee 

became a sub-committee of the Education committee as it affects the activity within the classroom 

QFHSA continued to be concerned about the omissions in the new Quebec High School history 

clll1iculum llrrough our involvement with ComECH (Committee for the Enhancement of the 

Curriculwn of History of Quebec), we joined other similarly concerned groups such as the English 

Parents' Committee Association (EPCA), Quebec Anglophone Heritage Network (QAHN) and 

Quebec Association of Geography Teachers and Global Educators (QAGT) in bringing awareness to 

this issue. We contacted and received a va1iety ofletters of suppo11 for mu· position from cultmal and 

religious groups in Quebec and held a joint press conference (ComECH and Kativik School Board) on 

May 2, 2017 at the Gavin Business Center in St Laurent, which garnered significant media coverage, 

albeit primarily from the English media. 

Representatives of ComECH have twice met with Education Ministry officials in Montreal to discuss the 

omissions but were tmsuccessfill in receiving any acknowledgement that there is, indeed, a problem. TI1e 

chair, Robert Green, has written a letter to Minister Proulx, on behalf ofComECH, protesting this lack 

of concern and requesting a fuce-to-fuce n1eeting. QFHSA remains co1m1itted to keeping this topic on 

the front burner and pushing for n1eaningful change. 

TI1e Literacy sub-committee was very active. Over the swmner months, staff and voltmteers weeded 

and processed the donated books stored in the QFHSA office. TI1e Literacy Committee was pleased 

lo allocate funding to three (3) higl1 schools for their literacy programs. Please see the separate literacy 

report. 

Following up on the presentation at the Fall Conference representatives from the QFHSA have joined a 

working group to explore NEXTschool, the fotme of high school education in Quebec. TI1e process for 

designing the prototypes has begun. Students are tackling the project through the McGill University's 

Change Manage111ent class in the School of Administration and Graduate Studies as a credited cotu·se. 

In parallel to that work, the community is also involved in the design process through the Design

Innopod Sessions. This heterogeneous group of individuals from diverse backgroW1ds (parents, 

teachers, administrators, and other education stakeholders) will be meeting for five (5) foll-day design 

sessions to discuss the prototype design possibilities and to trouble shoot where some of the stumbling 

blocks for progress tnay lie and consider ways to overcome them This design process is divided into 

five (5) areas ofresearch: Spatial (the where learning takes place), Temporal (the when learning takes 
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place), Andragogical (the what and how of a learner-centered experience), Relational (the who 

takes part in the learning experience) and Communal (the integration of lea ming within society) This 

group will be approaching the challenges from an architectural perspective. 

1l1ere will also be a more homogeneous group of school administrators who will participate in the same 

sort of design activity, coming at the same questions from their own perspective. Theirs will be a more 

engineering approach. Once the various groups have had a chance to design some prototypes for the 

new structure, a group of high school students will also be given an opportunity to offer what they would 

feel is the best answer to the question: When high school is the best it can be at preparing its students to 

self-actualii.e ... what will it look like? 

When all these various elements come together, the preliminary draft proposed prototypes will be 

submitted to the Director Generals and the Directors of English Education Network table in ApriVMay 

and after some editing, the final drafts will be prepared for the Director Generals' May meeting. The 

Design Phase Results will be presented at the QESBA/AAESQ Conference in Quebec City May 

24-25, 2018.

1l1ere are plans for a tlu·ee-day Sm111ner Institute in July/August, hosted by one of the downtown 

Montreal tuliversities, targeting schools that are interested in being involved. Invited guest speakers 

include Luke Sumich ofOmliston Jr. College, New Zealand; Justin Reich of MIT Leaming Labs and on 

the third day, Alan November, author of"H1w Owns the Leami11g?" will give a presentation and 

answer questions. Interested schools will be annotmced at the Summer Institute and will be followed by 

a "needs and readiness" assessment and then, once the schools have been chosen, they will start the 

PPI Design-process Training sessions. Once the preparation phase through adaptive design is 

complete, the lead schools will launch the new strncture in 2019 with the cycle initial learning clusters 

(Sec I students). 2018-19 will be considered as a 'Preparation Year' for schools that might lead 

NEXTsc/100/, and the first cohort will begin in September 2019. 

So this design of a new structure and approach to education, learning and teaching in Quebec, is being 

approached from many angles, with a diverse group of stakeholders being consulted. 111is is a design 

strategy predicated on grassroots pa1ticipation. It is exciting to be on the lead edge of this innovation, 

and an honour for Home and School to play a role. 

In 2018, the Education committee looked at some of the concerns expressed by parents including 

coding, robots, new sex education ctuTiculum, school fees, libraries of the futi.u·e, and the Institute of 

Excellence. A resolution received from the Canadian Home and School Federation on anti-bullying 

policies will require fill1her study as schools in Quebec are supposed to have policies in place. How 

well the protocol is being implemented will require research. In 2018, priority will be given to school 

fees and the sex education cuniculum. If you are interested in these two topics please contact the 

office to join the Education Corrnnittee. 
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LITERACY COMM IITEE 
Report to the Annual General Meeting- Ap1il 28, 2018 
Submitted by Debi Brown - Chair 

Mandate: 

• To promote awareness of the requirements for literacy in a knowledge-based society.
• To mobilize school and community vohmteer resources to advocate and deliver literacy

programs for prevention and remediation.
• To promote the Children's Literacy Resource Guide (CLRG) as a resow·ce to help

deliver programs.

Committee members - Debi Brown (Chair), Carol Meindl (Executive Director), Marlyn 
Browrnigg (Membership Services), Marion Daigle (Resorn-ce), Ute Wilkinson (Vohmteer), 
Sheila Desonncaux (Office Administrator), Jacqueline Barbieri (Volunteer) 

Activities May 2017 -April 2018 

1.0 Reluctant Reader Project: This project supports reading at the high school level. 
Teachers and students look for reading materials that are not only interesting to teenagers 
but also cater to the reading level of each student. One of the main goals of this program is 
to encmu·age and foster a love of reading. Fifteen schools in the QFHSA high school 
network were contacted in December 2017 and three (3) high schools expressed interest 
in the program Requests for theme and/or grade-specific books were also included on the 
fonding application. 

a) In Janua1y 2018, the Literacy Conm1it1ec allocated $300.00 (each) to the following high
schools: Gaspe Polyvalent (ESSB), Westwood High School (LBPSB) and Beaconsfield
High School (LPBSB). A box of books was also shipped to each school
b) Reports submitted to the QFHSA inch1ded the following: i.nfonnation on the books
pw·chased, the future plans for the program and the helpfi.tlness of the resources from the
QFHSA. Results have been ve1y successful. From grant recipients: I)"/ ,w,s able to use
tl,e fi11a11cial donation towards acquiring a wider range of books directed at exposing
the st11de11ts to i11tematio11al topics a11d a11thors ". 2) "Thank yo11 for the donated
reading resources! This is a welcome s1t17Jrise and a valuable addition to the resources
for 0111· unit and classroom libraries. "
c) The staff members responsible for these programs were encmu·aged to send pictmes or
w1ite an at1icle for the QFHSA NEWS.

2.0 Bom to Read and Other Projects: 

Born to Read: This year, two (2) Home and School associatior� organized Rom to 
Read events. They were: Roslyn Elementary (EMSB) and Edgewater Elementary 
(LBPSB). A Bom to Read Powerpoint is being updated and information will be available 
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at the AGM. The goal is to have additional local associations introduce this program in their 
schools. 

Revitalisation Ville St. Pierre - Young Mother's Literacy and Art Program: The QFHSA 
literacy committee has continued to support this program by collecting and donating books 
for children 0-5 years old. Ozlem Erte11, the program coordinator, met with the literacy 
committee to update the QFHSA on the evolvement of the program. Hopefully the 
program will continue next year. 
3.0 Book Donations from the QFHSA (since April 2017): 
a) QFHSA Member Schools: Ayer's Cliff Elementary (ETSB), New Richmond
Backpack program (ESSB), Belle Ansc Elementary (ESSB), Gaspe Polyvalent (ESSB),
Grosse Ile School (ESSB), Metis Beach School (ESSB)
b) New Home and School Associations: Wakefield Elementary (WQSB)
c) Other Organizations: Dans La Rue. Hedtage Lower St. Lawrence Library and West
Island Community Black Association.

4.0 Donors.Volunteers and Staff: It would not be possible for the QFHSA to support 
otu- literacy programs without the help of the following: 

a) NOVNSante West Island's Bookstore in Ste. Anne-de-Bellevue generously donates
their surplus books to the QFHSA for distnbution to schools and communities, pa11icularly
in outlying areas.

b) Canadian Herttage (PCH) and le Ministere de !'Education et de l'E11seig_11eme11t
superieur (MEES): Funds from these organizations help with the mailing costs and the
ptu·chase of new books, if necessary.

c) MN As: This year, a monetary donation was received from Geoff Kelley (MNA Jacques
Ca11ier) and used to defray the shipping costs of books.

d) Tembec: Once again, Tcmbec sent boxes of paper to off-island schools that arc part of
the QFHSA network.

e) St. John Fisher Parents: Many of the books donated to the Revitalisation Ville St. Pie1Te
project came from the parents of St. John Fisher Elementary School (LBPSB).

f) As a resltlt of contacting the QFHSA, Shoreline Press distributed books to: the Fraser

Hickson Library (Rebecca Pothier), Anne Macwhirter (Gaspe region) and Heritage Lower

St. Lawrence Libra1y.

g) Book donations from Gazette Article: TI1e QFHSA received book donations after an

article was published in the Montreal Gazette in 2017.
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h) Literacy Committee and QFHSA staff Literacy committee member Ute Wilkinson
continuously sources books from various books sales and the QFHSA literacy committee
and staff members prepare the books for shipping.

5.0 QFIISA 100th Anniversary 2019: The QFHSA Literacy is examining ways to 
involve local associations in corrmemorating this important anniversary. 

6.0 Updating Resolution 2011-01 on Funding for Libraries and Librarians: This 
resolution, originally slated to be caucused at the 2017 Annual General Meeting, was 

tabled for fiu1her study. In February 2018, the resolutions committee decided that not 
enough groundwork was done to present the resolution at the 2018 AGM. 
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Rights and Resolutions Committee 
Report to the Annual General Meeting- Aptil 28, 2018 
Submitted by Ginette Sauve-Frankel and Tanima Ghosl1 Co- Chairs 

Members: Ginette Sauve-Frankel and Tanana Ghosh, Co- Chairs; Linton Gamer, Acting President; 
Carol Meindl Executive Director, Sharad Bhargava, Lisa Fougere, Marlyn Brownrigg, Michael Nalecz. 

Resolutions 2017 

Fow· (4) resolutions were presented and subsequently adopted at the 2017 AGM: 

RESOLUTION 2017/02 Diversity and Inclusion 
RESOLUTION 2017/03 History of Residential Schools 
RESOLUTION 2017/04 Quebec Seconda1y III & IV history Cwiicultm1: In Need of Change 
RESOLUTION 2017/05 Software Coding 

Disposition of Resolutions The resolutions were sent to all the destinations indicated by the caucusing 
sessions and committee members. l11e following responses were received: 

Software Coding 

• Christine Pare, Attachee Politique, on behalf of Dominique Vien, ministre responsable du Travail
et ministrc rcsponsablc de la region de la Chaudicrc

o Claude Pinault, sous ministre associe responsable de !'application de la Politique Linguistique
• Honourable Navdeep Bains, Minister oflnnovation, Science and Economic Development.
• Jean-Clu·istoph Morin, conseiller politique, au nom du mini.stre de la Cu\ti.u·e et des

Communications,
o Patrick Gaz.aille, conseiller politique, on beha\fof Fran9ois Blais, Ministre de l'Emplois et de la

Solidarite sociale

Diversity and Inclusion, Sofhvare Cocling, History of Residential Schools and History of 
Quebec Curriculum (collectively) 

o Audrey Gauthier, attachee politique, au nom de la ministere responsable des Aines, Francine
Charbonneau

• Therese Gawnont-Renaud, adjointe de la Ministre, responsable de l'agenda, au nom de la
Ministre de rimrnigration, de la Diversite et de l'Inclusion, Madame Kathleen Weil.

• Nathalie Roberge, direcnice de cabinet, on behalf of Stephanie Vallee, minisn·e de la Justice.
• Marie- France Daoust, Directrice de cabinet, au nom de la vice-premiere ministre et Ministre

de la Condition feminine, Lise Theriault.
• Bmno Pelletier, attache politique, on behalf of Premier Phil]mpe Couillard.
• Anne Marie D. Turcotte, attachee politique, au nom de la ministre de l'Enseignement supe1ieur, 

Madame Helene David, 
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Diversity and Inclusion 

• S. Shepherd, Executive Co1rcspondcnce Officer for the Right Honmu·ablc Justin Trndeau,
Prime Minister of Canada.

• Ghislaine Saikaley, Interim Commissioner of Official Languages, and sharing the 2014 slllnma1y
repo11 on perspectives of Canadians of diverse backgr0tU1ds on linguistic duality

History of Residential Schools 

• Chloe Van BtLSseL attachee politique, au nom du ministre responsable des affai.res autochtone,
Geoff Kelley.

II is too' of Residential schools and History of Quebec Curriculum 

• Honourable Mat)'.am Mon5ef, Minister of Status of Women
• Daniele Besner, Direction GeneraL learning Policy, Partnerships and Services, Employment and

Social Development Canada.

llistoo' of Quebec Cuniculum 

• Ghislaine Saikaley, , Interim Commissioner of Official Languages
• Ma1ie-Josee Bond, Directrice de !'agenda de Phillippe Couillard, Premier, to Robe11 Green,

Chair ComECH
• Therese Gaumont-Renaud, adjointe de la Ministre, responsable de !'agenda, au nom de k1

Ministre de l'lnunigration, de la Diversite et de l'Inclusion, Madame Kathleen Weil, Quebec

Statement of Policy 

The Statement of Policy is a compilation of statements based on resolutions passed over the years by 
the delegates at the Annual General Meeting. It complements the purposes and objectives of Quebec 
federation of Honie and School Associations Inc. Following the AGM, it is updated each year and 
copies distnbuted to the local associations. Copies have been posted to the QFHSA website as well as 
are made available in the 2018 AGM kits. 
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CONSTITUTION AND BY-LA\\'S 

Report to the Annual General Meeting - April 28, 2018 
Submitted by the QFHSA Board of Directors 

Activities 20 17-18: 

During the cow-se of2017, the QFHSA had been chosen to undergo a charitable audit and worked 
closely with the Canada Revenue Agency (CRA) representatives to update policy and procedures to 
better comply with established nonns for charitable organizations. As a resttlt, there are changes to the 
QFHSA Constitution and By-Laws required 

1. Proposed Amendment to the Constitution (Resolution 2018/03)

In considering our constitution, CRA deemed the QFHSA objectives were too general and vague. As 
the objectives were written and adopted in 1959, it was agreed that it was time to update them The 
Executive Director and office staff worked closely with CRA to work out best practices and revised 
objectives. 

CRA acknowledged that our organiz.ation's activities have been charitable but our purpose was not, as 
descnbed in our cmTent objectives. Although CRA was not insisting that we change our objectives, they 
were strongly reconuiending that we do so as to reflect activities that are exclusively charitable. 

Therefore we drafted new objectives that more clearly define our activities with the intention, in
accordance with om· Bylaws, to bring them to our membership for adoption at AGM in 2018. See 
proposed amendments below in bold type: 

ARTICLE II 

CONSTITUTION 

1l1e constitution of the Federation shall be set fo1th in the Letters Patent granted under the Quebec 

Companies Act on August 27th, 1959, and Supplementary Letters Patent granted on May 08th, 1997, 

for the following purposes: To promote, encourage, assist and support Home and School 

organiz.ation and activity in the schools to advance education, throughout schools in Quebec. 

For the carrying on of the above mentioned purposes, the corporation may: 

I. Pro,•ide a forum to affiliated Home and School Associations for discussions of matters
of general interest, to stimulate co-operative effort by sharing best governance practices,
conducting workshops on various topics related to education and organizing Regional Council
meetings and Annual General Meetings.

2. Pro\'ide books, equipment and educational aids, ftftd activities and other resources for
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the benefit of students attending schools \\ith Home and School Associations and to 
community libraries. 

3. Provide information to parents via publication of our quarterly magazine, the QFHSA
NEWS and other social media tools, \\bich reflect the unique culture primarily of the
English-speaking school community of Quebec.

4. Partner n;th other educational community-based organizations to support projects for
affiliated Home and School Associations by funding, building, up-keeping of playground
structures, or any other projects that should enhance the learning experience of the children.

5. Assist or participate in the public education reform by providing well-reasoned
representations to public officials on various issues or decisions affecting the education
system, and by making these representations available to the public.

6. Promote community engagement by granting awards to students, volunteers, and
members for their outstanding efforts to humanitarian causes, and their contributions to the
life and cause of the Federation.

7. Develop between educators and the general public such united effort as shall secure
for every child the highest advantage in physical, mental, moral and spiritual education.

8. Promote an education for all, by maintaining a non-partisan, non-commercial, non­
racial and non-sectarian organization.

9. Provide various workshops to students and parents (anti-bullying, parenting, etc.)

l 0. Do all that is incidental and ancillal')' to the furtherance of the above-noted purposes.

Recommendation: That the proposed amendrnents to the Constitution of the Quebec Federation of 
Home and School Associations be adopted. 

2. Amendment to the By-Laws (Resolution 2018/04)

It was determined that, just as member associations are encotu·aged to have a Dissolution Clause in their 

By-Laws, in the case of closed or merged schools, so as to provide for the disbtu·sement of Home and 

School assets, the Quebec Federation of Home and School Associations should have a similar clause in 

its own By-Laws. Therefore, the QFHSA Board of Directors would like to recommend that Article 

XIII DISSOLUTION be added to the QFHSA By-Laws 
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ARTICLE XIII 

DISSOLUTION 

1. Voltu1tary dissolt1tion of the Quebec Federation of Home and School Associations requires

the following:

a. An Executive decision to disband can only be taken by a two-thirds vote of

members present at a General Meeting, provided that there is a quonun at such a

meeting in accordance with Quebec Federation of Home and School Associations

By-Laws, and that a f01mal notice of such an intent has been fo1warded to all

members, and that a motion to disband has been included in the announcement of

the General Meeting;

b. The reasons for a proposal of dissolution shall be forwarded in writing to the

Membership at least sixty (60) days before any action is taken;

c. In the case of a decision to dissolve, all its remaining assets after payment of its

debts shall be sent to chmities with educational or literacy mm1dates and the

decision ratified by the membership.

Recommendation: l11at the proposed amendment to the By-Laws of the Quebec Federation of Horne 
and School Associations, A11icle XIII DISSOLUTION, be adopted. 
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ADMINISTRATIVE/ OFFICE SERVICES-HIRING REPORT 
Report to the Annual General Meeting - April 28, 2018 
Submitted by Carol Meindl Executive Director 

Mandate: 
• To oversee the office, teclmology, equipment/supplies, contracts, etc.
• To oversee Hw11an Resources - hiring, contracts, evaluations, and staff meetings etc.
• To submit written reports of office acti\ities to the Board of Directors, including

recommendations when appropriate.
• To oversee the organization of the va1ious connnittees of the Federation, including

fmding chairpersons.

Administrative changes: l11ere were some changes in administration this year. l11e committee 
mandates were reviewed and were re-organized into the following committee strucnu·e: 

Standing Committees 

Executive Chair- B1ian Rock 
-History/ Archives project, Constitution/ By-Laws (QFHSA)
-Outreach/ Communications (external) Chair Linton Gamer

Nominations Chairs- Rosemary Mlll'phy/ Lany DePoe
Finance Chair- Leah Trincer 

Ad Hoc Committees 

Membership Chairs- Rhonda Boucher/ Maxin1e Cote I Rosemary Murphy 
Membership Services 
Communications (internal) 
Constitution/ By-Laws (Associations) 

Education Chair- Debi Brown 
Literacy 

Rights and Resolutions Chairs- Ginette Sauve-Frankel / Tan.ima Ghosh

Staffing Changes: 
l11ere were no staffing changes. A SlUnmer student, Amanda Paquin, was hired in July 2017 
tU1der the Canada Srnnmer Jobs Program to work on categorizing the articles in the QFHSA 
NEWS from 1944 to 2017. Over 300 a1ticles were categoriz.ed using Zotcro Standalone. 

QFHSA Office Staff2017-18: 

Sheila Deso1meaux 
Marlyn Brownrigg 
Carol Meindl 

Administrative Office Assistant 
Membership Services Coordinator 
Executive Director 
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Conh·act Positions 

Johnnie Belinda Cluff 
Marion Daigle 

Board of Director Changes: 

Editor, QFHSA NEWS 
History/ Archives Project Coordinator 

Michael Nalecz was appointed to the Board of Directors in January2018 

Board of Directors 2017-18: 

Brian Rock* 
Lawrence DePoe 
Linton Gamer 
Ginette Sauve-Frankel 
Rosemary Murphy** 
Wanda Leah Trineer 
Debi Brown 
Rhonda Boucher 
Tani-ma Ghosh 
Maxime Cote 
Michael N alecz 
Carol Meindl 

President 
Immediate Past President (11011-voti11g) 

Executive Vice President 
Vice-President 
Vice President 
Treasurer 
Secreta1y 
Director 
Director 
Director 
Director 
Executive Director (non-voting) 

*Brian Rock had asked and had been g ranted a medical leave of absence to
January 2, 2018. The leave of absence was extended to March 5, 2018.

**Rosemary Murphy had asked and was granted a leave of absence from March 
12 to April 28, 2018, as she serves as LBPSB Returning Officer for the 2018 
School Board elections in November. 
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QFHSA HISTORY AND ARCHIVES PROJECT 
Report to the Annual General Meeting, April 28, 2018 
Submitted by Carol Mcindl - Executive Director 

Mandate: To bring both the QFHSA History and Archives up-to-date. These will be valuable 
tools in educating om membership and the wider public about the influential role that parental 
involvement has played in Quebec's schools and communities, beginning in the 1920s and which 
has continued into the 21 't century. 

Project Staff 

Marion Daigle, Co-ordinator and Carol Ohlin, Assistant. 

Background to Date 
TI1ere are now over 300 archival boxes of preliminary histolical files. l11ey comprise a large 
munber dealing with Local Association Activities, Resolutions and Policy, Briefs, QFHSA 
NEWS (dating from 1948 onwards), records ofQFHSA committees, conferences, countless 
projects and the list goes on. In addition QFHSA has a large collection of Canadian Home & 
School Federation (CHSF) archival files. All of this niate1ial was invaluable in the preparation of 
an updated QFHSA Histo,y of Achievement, published i11 May, 2015. Archival research 
helps to define and expand the role of the Federation to its membership and to the wider 
co1111mmity. 

Donations 
We were gratefi.11 to receive a donation of$300 from the office of David Birnbatun, MNA for 
D' Arey McGee tlu·ough the Suppo11 Voltmteer Work program to put toward digitizing 
equipment. 

Archives actiYities 

History/archins update - Board of Directors Orientation Meeting 
At the request of President Brian Rock and Linton Gamer, Executive Vice-President, a 
comprehensive History/Archives report was presented to the Directors as part of their 
O1ientation meeting, September 9, 2017, with pa11icular reference to the years 2010 2017. 
l11e kit of infomiation doctUnented the history of the project since its inception in 1999. 
Infonnation included a description of the extensive historical doctunents already weeded, 
assessed, sorted and arranged into prelinrinary archival files along with the documentation 
remaining to be dealt with. Aligned with the archiving activities was the time spent by the 
co-ordinator as a resource on research, consultations, preparation of presentations, and activity 
reports to the Board of Directors and AGM. 

QFHSA - A History of Achievement -This QFHSA history booklet, 01iginally published in 
2015, in English, and reprinted in 2017 was translated into French. Copies will be printed and 
made available in 2018. 
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QFHSA NEWS- Over 300 individual articles from the early years of the QFHSA news 
publications were catalogued by our srnnmer student, Amanda Paquin. An article wiitten of her 
QFHSA experience was included in the QFHSA NEWS Fall 2017 issue. 

Photographs -Countless hours were spent identifying and sto1ing large munbers of archival 
photographs requiring extensive cross referencing with the QFHSA NEWS, an invaluable part 
of the of the QFHSA archives. 

Local Home and School Associations: l11e files of Member Home and School Associations 
relating to both closed and merged schools dating back to the earliest associations have been 
compiled and archived. Recent archives include Seigniory/Cedar Park, TI10mdalc, Cowtland 
Park, Bi.shop Whelan, Valois Park (partial) Elementary schools. Macdonald High School has 
donated early files although the school remains open. 1l1ere are more association files from 
N011hview and Valois Park recently received to be dealt with. 

QFHSA Committees - As resources are uncovered, Committee minutes and reports have 
been weeded, so1ted, assessed and integrated into existing archives. Examples include Rights, 
Education, Literacy, Resolutions and Policy. 

Personnel and Business Files- Files no longer needed in the daily operations of the 
Federation were archived this year. 

Research and Consultations requests 

Rights Committee 
May 11-12.2017 OUESCREN -CIRLM <Quebec English-Speaking Connnunities Research 
Network - Canadian Institute for Research on Linguistic Minorities) hosted a conference 
entitled: Bill I OJ at 40: The Charter of the Fre11ch Language and Quebec s English -­
speaking Communities 1977- 2017. 81ian Rock, QFHSA President, represented the 
Federation and made the following presentation: The Quebec Federntio11 of Home a11d 
School Associatio11s: The Strong Voice of Parents Regarding language Legislario11.fi-om 

Bill JOI to Bill 105 (1977 - 2017), an analysis of the roles played by parent volunteers through 
the QFHSA, its committees and its local associations over the past 40 years. 

Literacy Committee 

Born to Read Project - In an effort to update the QFHSA Power Point presentation on file for 
a filtw·e workshop, a request was received to prepare background and other pettinent 
infonnation from the Archives. 

Born to Read - Gaspe- In March, 2018 Anne Mac Whirter requested research into the archives 
in order to update her infonnation on the first Born to Read project in Quebec and Canada. 
Tilis literacy initiative was created by Anne MacWhnter in 1990, sponsored by the New 
Carlisle Home and School Association and suppo11ed by QFHSA and CHSF. 

51 



Resolution 20 l 7 /0 l Funding for Librarians and Libraries - This resolution was presented for 
reaffinnation at the 2017 AGM and defen-ed to the 2018 AGM. On Jw1e 19, 2017 a kit of 
backgrow1d infomiation on the topic dating back to the original resolution of 2004 was 
prepared. 

QFHSANE\VS 

A Tribute to Patrick Baker, Gordon Paterson Award recipient 1988, was researched and 
written for the Q FHSA NEWS, winter edition 2017. Pat Baker was a much loved and 
respected teacher, principal, educator, mentor and leader in promoting parental involvement in 
education and the well-being of children, particularly in the Lester B. Pearson School Board 
(LBPSB) community and with QFHSA. 

Community Requests 

History ofSoulanges School 1919 - 2019- At the request of Sylvie Mahannah, Soulanges 
School Retu1.ion Committee, a copy of The History ofSoulanges School dated 1982 was found 
in the QFHSA Archives, \vritten for their 75th Anniversary(\907-1982). The 100th amliversa1y 
spans the years l 919 - 20 l 9 although an earlier school opened in 1907. 

Teny Loucks, Goodwill Ambassador to Arvida, requested info1mation on Home and School 
Executive Committees for Saguenay-Arvida Home and School Associations 1957-1969 to help 
support his efforts to see Arvida recognized as a UNESCO World Heritage Site. 

Next Phase- Digitization and promotion 

Once the final archive is complete, plans will get underway to start digitizing parts of the archive 
for public access in the Fall of 20 l 8.l11e archivist will play a key role in deciding which aspects 
of the arcllive will be of the most interest to researchers and historians. The archivist will also 
detennine the best software and programs and platfonns for storing the digital archives and best 
mode for controlled public access. 

SPECIAL NOTE: A ve1y special thank you must be given to Marion Daigle and Carol Ohlin. 
ll1eir knowledge, experience and exceptional organizational skills for at least 30 years as 
QFHSA volw1tccrs and employees have been invaluable. We have been fortunate to have had 
their support throughout the course of this project. 

It is to do together that which we cannot do alone. 
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Communications, Media and Public Relations 
Report to the Annual General Meeting, April 28, 2018 
Submitted by Carol Mejndl Executive Director 

MANDATE: To oversee the implementation of initiatives to promote the mission and highlight the 
activity of the QFHSA through various media incruding, QFHSA NEWS, QFHSA website, Facebook 
pages, Twitter, press releases, interviews and articles. 

QFHSA NEWS: TI1e Editorial Committee (Johnnie Belinda Chit( Qu'Anglo CommtU1ications and 
Consulting, F,ditor; Carol Meind� Marlyn Brownrigg, Sheila Desomieaux) four ( 4) issues per year of 
the NEWS were published: Swumer (VollUrlC 55 Issue 2) Fall ( Volume 55 Issue 3) Winter (Voltn11C 55 
Issue 4) and Spring (Volume 56 Issue l ). 

QFHSA WEBSITE- www.qfhsa.org. Regular updates of the website are made on average two (2) 
per month. Our webmaster Cathy Ashford Mc Keough is incredibly efficient and has been able to post 
our changes within hours of receiving otu· requests. The main objective of the website is to provide easy 
access to fom1.S fur Home and School Executives as well as infomiation for mu· members. Traffic is 
heaviest dlll'ing the n10ntl1.S of May and October and we average about 3.5 visits a day. 

QFHSA Twitter acco1111t- 237 followers with an average of one (1) tweet per day. QFHSA Twitter 
account is linked to QFHSA Facebook page. 

FACEBOOK- OFHSA Faccbook page (@QFHSA)- 515 likes, up from467 in 2016 an increase of 
- I 0% with an average of l post per day. 488 followers.

PRESS RELEASES-in the past few years, QFHSA has not sent out regular press releases. Instead 
we do target emailing of doctunents to various organizations directly. QFHSA had one press release 
that was sent on April 27, 2017 in conjunction with ComECH Quebec regarding a scheduled press 
conference on May 2, 2017. 

E-B ULLETINS- Four (4) E-bullctins were sent to the local association presidents in 2017-18 with
important infumiation and links. These E-bulletins replaced the fonner "QFHSA Mail Bags".

QFHSA IN THE NEWS -Web article: QCGN Network Nen5; No\'ember 2017 QFHSA Fall 

Co1?fere11ce Looks At NEXTschoo/ 

PUBLICITY AND PROMOTION 
• QPAT Convention November 23-24, 2017, (Hyatt Regency Montreal), inforniation

table
• QCGN Infonnation Sharing Evening with MN A's at the National Assembly

QFHSA would appreciate advice and expertise on communication strategies and in\'ites 
members to join the Communications Committee. 
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MEMBERSHIP SERVICES 

REPORT to the Annual General Meeting - April 28, 2018 

Submitted by: Marlyn Browruigg, Membersbm Services Coordinator 

1\1 andate; 

To promote, encourage, and assist Home and School associations with membership activities. To 

evaluate and update membership kits and other membership materials designed to promote 

membership. To offer training for membership chairpersons via the executive workshops and the fall 

conference. To visit local Home and School associations and other school<; interested in forming a 

Home and School. To encourage local associations to host regional council meetings for Home and 

School,; in their area. 

Executive Workshops: 

The Executive training workshops were held at the QFHSA office on September 28th, 2017. Thirty five 

representatives from nineteen local associations attended. A separate report is included in the book of 

reports. 

Regional councils: 

A) AGM - April 29'11, 2017: These regional councils were held at the Annual General Meeting on April

29111 . 

• Delegates were divided into three groups two (2) elementary-level and one (I) high school

group.
• Discussion topics included: relationship between Home and School and the Governing Board,

principal and teacher representation at Home and School meetings, capital projects; focusing on

your community, fundraising, online payments, somcing supplies/gifts, starting an online fundraising

page (i.e. Google Classroom). Some of these items became workshop topics at the 2017 fall

conference.

B) August 26, 2017 - Western Quebec: Regional council (morning) and leadership workshop (afternoon).
• Representatives from seven (7) local associations attended the regional council in the morning.
• A condensed training workshop for all Executive positions was held in the afternoon.

C) October 28, 2017- QFHSA Fall Conference:

• There were three (3) regional council groups - two (2) elementary and one (I) high school.
• The QFHSA asked for information on the use of the school name on Home and School

events 'documents/websites, how events1fundraisers are approved, the new high school history

cull'iculum and the new sex education curriculum (pilot project).

D) January 25, 2018: Four (4) high schools were represented at the regional council hosted by Lindsay

Place High School Home and School Association. Three (3) high schools agreed to host elementary-level
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Home and School regional councils at their schools. As the school year is ending, we look forward to 

scheduling new ones in the Fall of 2018. 

Meetines with local associations: 

In addition to telephone consultations, there were numerous "face-to-face" meetings with nine {9) local 

associations this past year. Some topics covered were: graduation conunittees, running meetings, 

relationship between Home and School and administration, elections and constitution and by-laws. 

PACTE: One meeting of the PACTE committee took place on April 201\ 2018. lt was a pedagogical 

session for the English Language Arts consultants from the various school boards. 

Results of the 2017/2018 Membership Campaign (to April 17 th): 

2017-2018 

Family Memberships (thorough locals): 4239 

Associate Memberships (through locals) 55 

Individual Memberships 3 

Local Associations in Good Standing 84 

2016-2017 

4367 

97 

6 

85 

New Home and School Associations: Welcome to Wakefield Elementary (WQSB). Forest Hill Junior 

and Forest Hill Senior now have one Home and School per campus (LBPSB). 

2017-2018 Membership Awards: Evergreen Elementary (LBPSB), Genesis Elementary (SWLSB), 

Greater Gatineau Elementary ( WQSB), Maple Grove Elementary (LBPSB) and Shawinigan High School 

(CQSB). 

MEMBERSHIP COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS: 

A) Constitution and By-Laws: For those associations with Constitutions and By-Laws that are more than

10 years old the QFHSA will update these documents for each association using lists and reports

submitted to the QFHSA office. The updates will be done using the current QFHSA templates provided

to local associations.

B ) Insurance: That an ad-hoc insurance conm1ittec be established to look at the current QFHSA 

insurance policy to ensure that it meets the needs of local associations. Efforts will be made to include 

committee members who work in the insurance industry. 
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AGM 2017

Report to the Annual General Meeting, Aptil 28th, 2018 

Submitted by Sheila Desonncaux, Administrative Assistant 

Theme: "Ed11catio11 i11 the 21st Ce11twJ1: The First 20 Years"

Arrangements: 

Highlights: 

Coordinators: 

Book of Reports: 

Nominations: 

Registration: 

Carol MeindL Marlyn Brownrigg, Sheila Dcsonneaux 

Carol Meindl Marlyn Brownrigg, Sheila Desonneaux 

Rosemary Murphy 

Office 

Resolutions: Rickhey Margolcsc 

Membership Awards: Marlyn Brownrigg 

Newsletter Awards: 

Awards and Prizes: 

Parliamentarian: 

Speaker's List: 

Recording Secretary: 

Time Keeper: 

Credent�1ls: 

Scmtinecrs: 

Steering Committee: 

Martha Farley, Carol Ohl.in, Carol Meindl 

Carol Meind� Marlyn Brownrigg, Carol Olilin, 

Ma11ha Farley 

Debi Brown 

Marlyn Brownrigg 

Sheila Desonneaux 

Rosemary Murphy 

Marlyn Brownrigg 

Rosemary Murphy, Debi Brown 

Tanima Ghosh, Wanda Leah Trineer 

Keynote speaker, Mr. Ron Ttu-chyniak, tech consultant for the Sir Wilfiid Latu·ier 

School Board. He holds a niastcr's degree in biomcchanics and is a Pedagogical 

Consultant at the Sir Wilfiid Laurier School Board. 

Annual General Meeting: - Satmday April 29, 2017 

Registration: 66 people, representing the following 26 member Home and School Associations: 

Beacon Hill Elementa1y Birchwood Elementary Chelsea Ele1nentary 

Christmas Park Elementary Dorset Elementary Evergreen Elementary 

Gardenview Ele1nenta1y Genesis Elementary Hillcrest Academy 

Honore Mercier Elemcnta1y John Rennie High School Kingsdale Academy 

LaurenHill Academy Lindsay Place High School Me11on Elementary 

Pierre Elliott Trndeau Elcmenta1y Soulanges Elementary South Hull Elementary 

Souvenir Ele1nentary St. Charles Elementary St. Patrick Elementaty 

St TI10nias High School St. Edmund Elementary St. Jolut Fisher Elementary 

Westwood Jr. High School Wilder Penfield Elerrentary 
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\\'elcome and Introductions: 

The meeting was chaired by the President, Brian Rock. He welcomed everyone and introduced those at the 
Head Table: Debi Brown, Secretary; Carol Meindi QFHSA Executive Director; Rosemaiy Mtu-phy, 
Vice-President and Sheila Desomteallx, Administrative Assistant. 

The ren,aining Directors were also presented to the delegates: 
Wanda Leah Trineer, QFHSA Treasmer; Rhonda Boucher, Director; Ginette Sauve-Frankei Vice 
President; Tanima Ghosh, Director; Linton Garner, Executive Vice-President. 

TI1e President welcomed the invited guests: Renate Sutherland, President, Quebec Provincial Association of 
Retired School Educators; Tarek Toni, Senior Program Advisor, Canadian He1itage, Cathrine Le Maistre, 
Chair of the Advisory Board on English Education, Marion Daigle QFHSA Past president ( 1983-85), Emma 
Gauthier & Lianne Heron LBPSB Student Commissioners, Cameron Gray, President, Quebec Association 
of Geography Teachers and Global Educators. 

Regrets were received from: 
Christian Rousseau, Interim Assistant Deputy Minister, Ministre de !'Education, du Loisir, du Sport; Sandra 
Binns, President Ontario Federation of Home and School Associations; Jennifer Maccarone, Chair of 
Quebec English School Boards Association; David 0. Joluic;ton, Quebec Representative from Office of the 
Commissioner of Official Languages; Steven Colpitts, Director of International Programs, LBPSB; Corinne 
Payne, President, Federation Conute de parents du Quebec. 

Greetings: 

Renate Sutherland, President of the Quebec Provincial Association of Retired School Educators, 

brought greetings on behalf of the 1250 retired teachers, principals, and supp011 personnel. She readily 
acknowledged the contribution of parents in the past to the rnnning of the school hbraries, ordering books 
and repairing them, always contnbuting to the goal of teaching children to leam how to leam. 

Rosemary Murphy, Quebec Representative to the Canadian Home and School Federation, brought 
greetings from the national organization. CHSF will be looking to support and promote a Children's 
Commissioner and as well as their ongoing concern regarding the recent Copyright legislation that will be 
brought in by the Federal government. Rosemary Murphy thanked QFHSA for playing such a prominent role 
at the CHSF table. 

Cathrine Le Maistre, Chair of the Advisory Board on English Education (ABEE), brought greetings and 
spoke about ABEE and its role in advising the Minister of Education on niatters concerning English education 
in Quebec. One of the problems that ABEE faces is that there is not always immediate feedback from their 
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advice but it does eventually filter tlu·ough. Le Maistre praised QFHSA for its contnbution to the hearings on 

Bill 86 by the Committee on Culture and Education. She offered the opinion that it is the partnerships in the 

English Commtuuty in Quebec, that plays such a significant role in the success rate in the English education 

system 

Rhonda Boucher, President of the English Parents' Committee Association (EPCA), brought 

greetings on behalf of EPCA. 

Keynote Speaker 

The Keynote Speaker for the morning was Ron Turchyniak, tech consultant for the Sir Wilfrid Laurier 

School Board. Ron Turchyniak holds a masters degree in biomechanics and is a Pedagogical Consultant at 

the Sir Wilfrid Laurier School Board. 

His focus is on educational and assistive technology and his mission is to suppo1t and inspire educators 

through the promotion of collaboration, inno\'ation and engaging pedagogical practices. 

Ron works closely with cL1ssroom teachers and strives to achieve best practices for teclmology integration in 

teaching and leami.ng. 

In the last five years, he has been at the forefront of deploying and rnanaging Google Apps for Education (G 

Suite) at his school board. Ron brings the Universal Design for Learning (lIDL) approach to visits with 

teachers and classrooms. 

In his keynote, Ron introduced the delegates to the 21 century classroom and highlighted the successes and 

challenges of the continuous work with teachers, school boards, and the province. 

Election of the Board of Directors was held and Carol Me ind� Executive Director and Past President, 

conducted the Installation Ceremony. A new Director was elected to the Board: Maxin1e Cote from 

Baie-Comeau. 

Membership and Newsletter Awards were presented by Carol Meind� Executive Director at the end of the 

business meeting. Five (5) membership awards and two (2) newsletter awards were presented. TI1c 

recipients were: Highest percentage of family memberships: Edgewater Elementary & Beacon Hill 

Elen1entary. Increase in family memberships: St. Edmund Elementary, St. Anthony Elementary and 

Momtainview Elementa1y. Newsletter awards: Pien-e Elliott T111deau Elementa1y and Beaconsfield High 

School. 
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Awards Banquet: 

The Master of Ceremonies was Tanirna Ghosh. 

Attended by 105 people including Directors, guests Charles Taker, Liaison Officer, Office of the 

Corrnnissioner of Official Languages; James Shea, President of QCGN. l11ere were 19 member Home and 

School associations represented. 

Beacon Hill Elementary 

Dorset Elementary 

Genesis Elementary 

LaurenHill Academy 

Pierre Elliott Tmdeau Elementary 

St. Pattick Elementary 

Wilder Penfield Elementary 

Birchwood Elementary 

Evergreen Elementary 

John Rennie High School 

Lindsay Place High School 

South Hull Elementary 

St. Thomas High School 

Chelsea Elementary 

Gardenview Elementary 

Kingsdale Academy 

Merton Elementary 

St. Charles Elementary 

St. John Fisher Elementary 

During the evening the QFHSA was please to present the following awards: 

Gordon Paterson Award: Established in l 973, this award honours an outstanding educator who believes in 

parental involvement . The 2017 recipient was Galina Stepanova from Genesis Elementary. 

Leslie N. Buzzell Award: Established in 1950, this award recognizes a QFHSA Board or Committee 

Member for their long standing leadership and dedication, to promoting and fi.uthering the QFHSA mission at 

the provincial level. l11e recipient was Wanda Leah Trineer, QFHSA Director. 

l11ere were 28 Unsung Hero Awards and 16 Golden Torch Awards presented. We once again had a 
dance feattu·e added to mu· prograrn of activities with Chris Blais, Manta Studios, providing the music. 
Photos were taken by Howard Kay Photography. 
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EXECUTIVE \\'ORKSHOP REPORT 
Report to the Annual General Meeting, April 28th, 2018 
Submitted by: Sheila Desonneaux Adminisn·ative Assistant 

Mandate: To provide Infonnation to local association executive committee leaders on how to fulfill the 
responsibilities of their jobs; to distnbute materials pe11i.nent to their executive positions; to offer 
an oppornulity to network and exchange ideas with representatives from other schools; to meet 
the Board of Directors and office staff, to visit the provincial office and to learn about the 
resources available to them and their schools. 

Date: The Executive Training Workshops took place on September 28th, 2017 at the Q FHSA office. 

Attendance: In total 35 people attended representing 19 local associations: 

Cedarcrest Elementary 
Dorset Elementary 
Edinburgh Elementary 

Honore Mercier Elementary 
Me11011 Elementary 
St. Patrick Elementary 
Wilder Penfield Elementa1y 

Christmas Park Elementary 
East Hill Elementary 
Forest Hil!Jr. Elementary 
John Rennie High Elementary 
Sherbrooke Academy 
St. 1l1omas High School 

Workshops: l11crc were 3 (three) workshops: 

President's Workshop 

Clearpoint Elementary 
Edgewater Elementary 
Forest Hill Sr. Elementary 
Kingsdale Academy 
Souvenir Elementary 
St. Vincent Elemcnta1y 

Tani.ma Ghosh, QFHSA Director and past Home and School President from Wilder Penfield (LBPSB), led the 
President's workshop. 20 people attended. Feedback received indicated that the workshop is really for NEW 
presidents and presidents with more experience may appreciate their own separate regional councils to discuss various 
topics such as acti\�tics, ftmdraising, insurance, fees and govcming board approval.. 

Treasurer's \Vorkshop 
Carol MeindL QFHSA Executive Director along with Leah Trineer QFHSA Treastu·er worked together to facilitate this 
workshop. l 0 people attended. 

Membership/Communications 
Marlyn Browruig:g facilitated this workshop. Six (6) people attended. Membership chairs and secretaries attended the 
workshop so the duties of a sccretaiy were also discussed. An updated version of Lisa Fougerc's commtmications 
doctuncnt was used to discuss commtu1ications with parents and the conummity. 
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Fall Conference 2017 

Report to the Ammal General Meeting, April 28th, 2018 
Submitted by: Sheila Desormeaux Administrative Assistant 

Date: The Fall conference was held on October 28'", 2017 at Pierre Elliott Trudeau Elementary (PETES) 
in Vaudreuil with PETES Home and School hosting. 

Attendance: 52 people representing 22 Home and Schools attended along with eight (8) invited guests, 
three (3) QFHSA staff members and seven (7) QFHSA board members for a total of 70 not including the 
volunteers from PETES or the Vendors. 

Home and School Associations that attended: 

Baie Comeau High School 
Chelsea Elementary 
Edinburgh Elementary 
John Rennie High School 
Merton Elementary 
Sherbrooke Academy 
St. Jolm Fisher Elementary 

Beacon Hill Elementary 
Christmas Park Elementary 
Evergreen Elementary 
Lindsay Place High School 
Mount Pleasant Elementary 
South Hull Elementary 
St. Patrick Elementary 

Birchwood Elementary 
Dorset Elementary 
Gardcnview Elementary 
Macdonald High School 
Pierre Elliott Trudeau Elementary 
Souvenir Elementary 
Westwood High School 

Opening Remarks/Keynote Speakers: Introductions were made by Brian Rock, QFHSA President 
and Carol Meinel!, QFHSA Executive Director. Bringing greetings were Dion Joseph, PETES Principal; 
David Birnbaum, Parliamentary Assi .. tant to the Minister of Education, Lci,;urc and Sport; and Catlu·ine Le 
Maistre, Chair of the Advisory Board on English Education. Noel Burke and Michael Canuel, CEO of 
LEARN presented the keynote speech on the NEXTsc/100/ project. Their presentation was well received 
by the audience. 

Works hops: There were 6 workshops offered this year. 

Teen Depression : Cher Bercovitch, Family Resource Center 
Online Payments: Tanima Ghosh, Pamela Gareau (Evergreen,) Lisa Weinberger of Sagoto Solutions &
Tricia Steeves (Chelsea Elementary) powerpoint presentation. 
The Diamond: relations between PPO, Governing Board and Home and School: Rosemary Murphy and 
Debi Brown 
Email Etiquette: Luigi Di Filippo, Director of Technical Services EMSB 
Character Buildiqg: Corey Szwarcok, Evcrblast. 
Art Mattel's: ArtWill Studios, Deirdre Potash 

Vendors/Promotional Mate rial for kits: This year nine (9) vendors reserved tables. 
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Regional Councils: ll1ere were three (3) regional councils - one ( l) high school and two (2) 

elementary schools. Elementary schools from different school boards were mixed together to balance 

out the numbers and to give different perspectives on va1ious issues. Discussion items were suggested 

by the QFHSA based on concerns recently handled by the office staff. 111c following items were 

discussed. 

1.0 Is your Home and School allowed to use the school name on the Home and School 

website, Facebook page, etc? How easy is it to post H&S events on the website? 

Docs the Principal monitor aU co1ru11w1ications that go out via kiddie mail and the 

website? 

2.0 Does Staff Council have to approve Home and School fi.U1draisers and events? 

3.0 Has yotu· Home and School been asked to hold fonds for the school without access 
to the contract or control over the fiu1ds? 

4.0 (High Schools) - Comments on the history cuITicultun and sexual education 

cunicultun 

5.0 Other Items: grade six (6) grad committees, successful fillldraisers in high schools? 

Recommendations: 

• Keep the same "lunchbox or family-style'' fonnat for lunch option.

• Have the door priz.e draw at lunch tinie as the regional cotU1cils often do not finish at the same

time.
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EXECUTIVE APPRECIATION DINNER 

Repo11 to the Atu1ual General Meeting-· April 28, 2018 
Submitted by Sheila Dcsonueaux, Administrative Assistant 

Mandate 

I!fil 

Venue 

llus annual event is hosted by the QFHSA Board of Directors to thank the dedicated 
Executives and special volunteers in the local Home and School Associations. 111c 
invitation was extended to all Montreal area associations. Each association was 
pennitted to invite two (2) executive members whose meal expenses were subsidiz.ed 
by QFHSA. Th.is social evening is an opportunity to network in an infonnal setting and 
to exchange ideas. 
This year a second appreciation supper was held in the Western Quebec region hosted 
by Board of Director members who live in the area. 

l11e 14th annual Executive Appreciation event was held on March 15th, 2018 from 7:00 
pm to 9:30 pm The first WQSB Executive Appreciation event was held April 4th, 

2018 at 7 pm 

111c Montreal area event was a sit down dinner and was held at Restaurant Via 
Marcello, in St-Latu·ent, Quebec. 1l1e Western Quebec dinner was held at Casa 
Grecque in Gatineau. 

Program 
For both events we chose not to have a guest speaker, allowing the executives more 
time to network and brainstonn new ideas. Door priz.es were given as a token of 
appreciation for all their hard work and dedication at the local level. 

Attendance 

Montreal: Twenty-seven (27) attended representing fifteen (15) Home and School 
Associations in addition to the Board of Directors and office staff. Schools represented 
were: 
Cedarcrcst Elementary Clearpoint Elementary Forest Hill Jr. Elementary 
Forest Hill Sr. Elementary Hillcrest Academy John Rennie High School 
Kingsdale Academy Lindsay Place High School Merton Elementary 
Pien-e Elliott Trudeau Elementary Roslyn Elementary Souvenir Elementary 
St.John Fisher Elementary St. Thomas High School Wilder Penfield Elementary 

Western Quebec: Fow1een (14) attended representing fow· (4) Home and School 
Associations in addition to the Board of Directors. Schools represented were: 
Lord Ayhner Elementary Onslow Elementary South Hull Elementary 
Wakefield Elementary 

Evaluation 
While the fonnat of a sit down supper without a speaker was appreciated by most, 
suggestions were received about possibly having more of a program Also request to 
switch people around pa1t way through the evening so executives can meet more people. 
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YES (Youth Exploring Science) 

Report to Annual General Meeting- April 28, 2018 
Submitted by Carol Meindl Executive Director 

Mandate The YES project was initiated byQFHSA to provide science workshops to member 
schools in more rernote regions of Quebec via the video-conferencing network of the Quebec 
Community Leaming Centers (CLC), to inspire tomorrow's scientists. 

TI1e fonnat of th.is year's Youth Exploring Science program was changed as Evelyn Castillo, our 
usual acti\�ty animator, was unavailable. As an alternative from doing three different workshop 
activities, we partnered with Le Nichoir, a bird Sanctuary in Hudson, QC to educate the kids 
about our feathered friends and to help celebrate the Year of the Bird. 

Workshops were still offered on Satmdays afternoons. 

CLC participation: We e1�oyed the participation of three (3) CLCs this session: 

• Latu·entian Regional CLC (Sir Wi(frid La11rier School Bowd) cord. Melanie Bujold
• Valleyfield CLC (New Frontiers School Board) cord. Brooke Wilson
• H1u1tingdon CLC (Nell' Frontiers School Board) cord. Heidi Niven

Jo-Annie Gagnon, Education Coordinator for Le Nichoir, took her" bird show on the road" 
along with feathered friends - beaks, wings, webbed feet and all. Students learned about natural 
bird adaptations as well as the many and varied ways birds can get ntjured navigating through 
the hazardous world of our hwnan creation. Students learned how to recognize the different 
injtuies a bird can suffered and reco1ru11end a treat111ent. Each pa1ticipating school received a 
squincl busting bird feeder and each participating student received window decals to keep birds 
from flying into their windows at home. 

School participation: There were ~65 students registered from 6 schools: St Adele*, Grenville 
Elementary, Morin Heights Elementary* and Laurentian Elementary Schools*, Gauh Institute 
Elementary, and Heritage Elementary. 
*Not Home and School Associations.

Sumrnao·: TI1ere is a continued interest in participating in the YES project. It is serving a need 
that is apparent in the regions. TI1e students really enjoy the hands on aspect of these 
workshops as well as the 'take home' mateiials for fi.u1her exploration. 1l1e schools benefit as 
well because the demonstration mate1ials often stay in the school. The QFHSA n1tends to 
continue to offer Youth Exploring Science as part of our regular programming for our n1embcr 
associations in the regions and as an outreach irtitiative to inner city schools and prospective new 
members. 

Next year: We look to partner with Let's Talk Science in 2018-19 to bring science activities 
to the regions. 
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Canadian Home & School Federation (CHSF) 

Report to the Annual General Meeting April 28,2018 
Submitted by Rose Murphy. OFHSA Representative 

TI1e Canadian Home and School Federation was fonned in 1895 and QFHSA has been a core 

member since 1944. 

Activities 2017-18 

1l1e CHSF Board of Directors met twice in 2017. 

l\lay 4'h -6th in Fredericton, New Brunswick 

Attending this meetings were delegates from New Bmnswick, Nova Scotia, Onta1io and Quebec. 

The May meetings studied the Procedures and Policies Regarding School Closures in the fotu· (4) 

provinces. The CHSF Strategic Plan was reviewed and adopted. 

Jeff MacFarlane from the Ville Cooperation was invited to give an overview of this co-op. The Ville is 

a non-for-profit co-op which utilizes tu1de111Sed buildings to transfonn them into community centres. It 

works with schools and the community to establish and maintain a garden and to give workshops on 

gardening, woodworking and sewing, etc. 

l11e Federation is still looking into the copyright and child health folders. A munbcr of groups have met 

with Members of Parliament and Cluis George, Chainnan of the Copyiight Co11s011ium, to explain 

how the bill will affect hbra1ies and educational institutions. It was decided to add om· national voice to 

the discussion by sending letters to Mr. George and all otu· Members of Parliaments. Senator Dorothy 

Raine has introduced a bill to amend the food and drug act to prevent adve1tising to children. CHSF 

President Richards will contact her to discuss the Child Health Protection Act. It was also 

recomrnended that CHSF endorse the Child & Youth Advocacy Commission. 

Resolutions on the Enforcement of School Anti-Bullying Policies and the Health of Children Regarding 
Sleep will be studied and was placed on the November agenda. 

November 2nd 
- 3rd in Halifax, Nova Scotia. 

Attending this meetings were delegates from New Brunswick, Nova Scotia, Ontaiio and Quebec. 

At the November meetings the Board received the President ·s Report. Being Cynthia Richards' final 
one as President, she thanked her Executive and Board members for all their work and support. She 
reported on the two conferences that Canadian attends: 

TI1e CASSA-ACGCS (Canadian Association of School System Administrators /Association 
canadienne des gestionnaires de commissions scolaires) conference was held July 5 in Nova Scotia with 
the theme "Healthy Schools, Healthy Communities, Healthy Future". 
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1l1e EdCan Network Conference was held October 4 - 6 in Toronto. 1l1e theme also explored the 
topic of health with a panel discussion 'Voices from Healthy High School Cultures'. Speakers and 
workshops deah with such topics as: students receiving meaning learning for heahhy minds and bodies; 
mental health can worsen one's physical heahh; well-being; social-emotional learning; tips for leading 
healthy school cul.n1res; making the connection between youths' social media use and their well-being; 
and playing the long game to embed well-being in all our classrooms. 1l1is closing statement said it all, 

"We need to do whatever we need to do to see all student succeed. Just because we do not know 
how to teach a specffic student it does 110! mean we have t'1e rig/If to limit their teaming''. 

In keeping with the focus of our strategic plan for the fiiture, the Board developed a new web site, 

www.canadianhomeandschoolfederation.ca and twitter @cdnhs. The artwork on the brochures and 

pop-up banner will be done by the graphic depa11ments at the New Brunswick and Onta1io Home and 

School Associations. They will then be produced and sent to the member provinces. 1l1ere will also be 

a concerted effort to seek new fonding to help with membership and new strncturing of membership and 

1neetings. It was suggested that there only be one face-to-face meeting (probably the AGM) and one 

technical (phone/video) meeting. 

Awards 

1l1e criteria for the Life-Time Membership Award were rc,�cwcd and a recipient was chosen. 1l1e 

Board voted tu1animously to award Quebec's Rickhey Margolese the Lifetime Membership Award. 

Future Activity 

The Standing Rules and Policy procedures will be reviewed and updated by the Board of Directors. 

1l1e CHSF resolutions, Enforcement of Anti.bullying Policy/ies and Healthy Sleep and Late 

Start Times, were voted to proceed to the provinces. 

1l1e Spring Board Meeting will be held in Onawa, May 6- 7 and 8. Letters will be sent to the 

Govemor-Generai the Prime Minister, va1ious ministers and ce11ain organizations with whom we wish 

to meet. 1l1e topics for discussion will be the Copytight Act, the Child Health and Protection Act (Bill 

S-228) and the promotion of CHSF.

Diane Powell from Nova Scotia was acclaimed President ofCHSF and Arlene Morell was acclaimed 

Vice President. The next AGM will be held no later than November 16 -18, 2018. 
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QUEBEC COMMUNITY GROUPS NET\\'ORK (QCGN) 

Report to the Annual General Meeting, April 28, 2018 

Submitted by Carol MeindL Liaison 

l\lission: Founded in 1995, the Quebec Community Groups Network (QCGN) is a not-for-profit 

organization linking 53 English-language corrummity organizations across Quebec. l11e Quebec 

Community Groups Network (QCGN) identifies, explores and addresses the strategic issues affecting 

the development and vitality of English-speaking Quebec. In partnership with member organizations, 
stakeholders, community leaders and institutions, it ai1iculates the views of English-speaking Quebec on 

issues of strategic concem and takes action to address them 111e QFHSA has been an active member 

of QCGN since its inception. 

The new members that were welcomed to the Network at the 2017 QCGN AGM: 

Gaspcsian British Heritage VIiiage 

• Family Resotu"ce Center

The current OCGN Board of Directors 2017-18: 

James Shea (President), Geoffrey Chambers (Vice-President), Joe Rabinovitch (Treasurer}, Walter 
Duszara (Secretary), Juan-Carlos Quintana, Eric Maldoff, Mary-EUen Beaulieu, Eva Ludwig, Elise 
Moser, Clarence Bayne, Stella Kennedy, Linton Gamer*, Gerald Cutting and Christopher Neal. 

•Linton Gamer also se1ves at QFHSA's Executive Vice-President

Sheila and Victor Goldbloom Distinguished Community Service Award The 2017 Distinguished 
Community Awards ceremony was emceed by CTV Montreal lead anchor Mutsumi Takahashi. l11e 
ninth edition of this ceremony took place on October 26, 2017, at Montreal's Saint-James Club. 1l1is 
year's recipients were: 

Clifford Lincoln, Jim Carter, Earl De La Perralle and Sid Stevens 

Young Quebecers Leading the Way. Recipient of this year's award was presented to: 

Claudia Di Iorio 

Leah Trineer, Treastu·er, attended the event on behalf ofQFHSA. 

TI1e QFHSA values its ongoing membership in the Quebec Community Groups Network and 

appreciates the opportunities it offers to network and be part of the greater English Speaking community 

of Quebec, bringing the voice of parents to the table. 
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QUEBEC ANGLOPHONE HERITAGE NETWORK (QAHN) 

Report to the Annual General Meeting, April 28, 2018 

Submitted by Carol Meindl Liaison 

MISSION: Founded in 2000, the Quebec Anglophone Heritage Network (QAHN) is a non-profit, 
non-partisan tu11brella organization engaged with its members in promoting the preservation of the built, 
culnrral and narural he1itage of Quebec. It connects small musemm and hist01ical societies from across 
the province. QAHN aims to promote a greater tmderstanding of the histo1y of Quebec's 
English-speaking cotrnnunitics by infonning, inspiring and connecting people through its activities. 
Membership is open to any orgaruz,ation or individual regardless of language or cultural affiliation, with 
an interest in the histo1y, he1itage and culture of Quebec's English-speaking communities. 

QFHSA bas been a core member of QAHN since 2013 by virtue of its own extensive archive of 
historical material that clu·oniclcs parental participation in education in Quebec for over 70 years. 
QAHN offers workshops on archive protection and management as well as volunteering and fimdraising 
strategies from which QFHSA staff and members can benefit. 

2017 BOARD OF DIRECTORS: Simon Jacobs (President), Grant Myers, Dick Evans, Carol 
Mcind� * Jo-Anne Oberg-Muller, Ann Montgomery, Derck Hopkins, Dorothy Williams, Sandra Stock, 
Teny Loucks, Fergus Keyes, Glenn Patterson, Jody Robertson. 

*Carol Me ind� QFHSA Executive Director, is an executive member of the QAHN Board of Directors 
and serves as liaison with QFHSA.

JOINT ACTIVITY: QAHN and QFHSA both continue invotven1ent with COmECH Quebec, each 

having an interest in preserving the histo1y of English Speaking Quebec as taught to filtlU'e generations of 

students. 

NE\\' CORE MEMBERS 

D01val Historical Society (Do1val) 

Anny Navy Air Force Musemn (TI1e Hut, Lennoxville) 

Funu·e project: QAHN will be hosting a se1ies of workshops on Heritage, Culture and 

Communication: Balancing Traditional and Digital Media in a Changing World. This series of 

presentations will help organizations to diversify their comrmmication strategy to maxinli.ze reach to their 

audience and members. QAHN otters a discow1t on registration fees for Home and School members 

who wish to attend these workshops. 

QFHSA will continue to have an interest in the he1itage projects that QAHN initiates and to look for 

ways to collaborate on projects with the help of our member associations, in a joint efrort to help 

promote and preserve English-speaking he1itage in Quebec. Volunteering is part of the Quebec English 

Speaking Com1mmity's culn.rre and heritage. 
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